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LEEDS DIOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE

TRUSTEES REPORT 2022

The Trustees, who are also Directors for the purposes of company law, present their annual report,
together with the audited financial statements, for the year ended 31 December 2027

The Directors/Trustees are one and the same and in signing as Trustees they are also signing the
strategic report sections in their capacity as Directors.

This combined report satisfies the legal requirements for:

A Directors’ Report of a charitable company;
* AStrategic Report under the Companies Act 2006; and
*  ATrustees' Annual Report under the Charities Act 2011,

LEGAL OBIECTS

The Diocese of Leeds is one of 41 Dioceses which cover the whole of England. The Diocese covers
West Yorkshire, the western part of North Yorkshire, and parts of South Yorkshire, Lancashire and
County Durham. The Diocese comprises five Archdeaconries which form the Episcopal Areas. It covers
an area of around 2,425 square miles, housing a population of around 2,642, 400. The Diocese has 598
church buildings in 455 parishes with 330 stipendiary clergy, 82 self-supporting clergy and 450 clergy
with Permission To Officiate ("PTO") along with 354 Readers, 85 authorised lay pastoral minsters and
41 chaplains. There are also 240 Church of England schools and 11 M ulti-Academy Trusts senving some
64,000 pupils within the Diocese.

The Leeds Diocesan Board of Finance's ("LDEF") principal objective is to promote, assist and advance
the work of the Church of England in the Diocese of Leeds by acting as the financial executive of the

Leeds Diocesan Synod,
The LDBF has the following statutory responsibilities:

. The management of glebe property and investments 1o generate income to support the cost

of stipends arising from the Endowment and Glebe Measure 1976;

il The repair of benefice houses as the Diocesan Parsanage Board under the Repair of Benefice
Buildings Measure 1972;

.  The management of investments and the custodians of assets refating to church schoals under
the Diccesan Board of Education Measure 1991: and

iv. The custodians of permanent endowment and real property assets relating to trusts held by
Incumbents and Archdeacons and by Parochial Church Councils (“PCC") as Diocesan Authority
under the Incumbents and Churchwardens (Trusts) Measure 1964 and the Parochial Church
Councils [Powers) Measure 1956,

The strategic priorities of the company are established by the Diocesan Synod in communication with
Deanery Synods, PCCs and the Bishop of Leeds (in respect of his responsibility for the provision of the
cure of souls). To this end, significant time and effort Is committed to communication between and
with these bodies, as well as with the church nationally.
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STRATEGIC AIMS

The main role of the LDBF is toidentify and manage the financial aspects of ministry and mission within
the Diocese, so as to provide appropriate personnel and financial resources to assist the Diocesan
Synod, Bishop's Council and parishes to further the mission and strategic pricrities in the Diocese.

LDEF's principal activity Is to promote, facilitate and assist with the work and purposes of the Church
of England for the advancement of the Christian faith in the Diocese of Leeds.

LDBF's strategy for achieving its objectives s to develop and maintain a sound financial structure to
enable it to continue supporting the clergy through the payment of stipends, manage parsonages and
other ministerial housing, and also by providing other facilities and resources in suppart of the ministry
of both clergy and lay people in parishes across the Diocese,

Diocese of Leeds Strategy

The Diccese of Leeds has a vision for confident Christians, who are part of growing Churches and
transforming communities.

We want 1o be faithful to our calling to be good news, share the Gospel and serve with steadfast
purpose the communities in which we live.

That vision of confident Christians, growing churches and transforming communities has been at the
heart of the strategic direction of the Diocese for a number of years. It set the tone and provided much
of the backbone for the diocesan strategy which was developed in 2019 and which contained five clear

goals.

Thriving as a Distinctive Diocese
Relmagining Ministry

Murturing lay discipleship

Building leadership pathways
Growing young people as Christians

il 5 v e

These goals, conceived from a place of stability in 20018/15, identified where our hope lay and our
ambitions should be focused. Progress was made in some areas yel despite committed intention,
implementation of the strategy across the Diocese and particularly at parish level has been difficult.

The strategy was still in its infancy at the start of the Covid-19 pandemic. In response, parishes moved
from future thinking to survival mode. Many are still recovering. Conseguently, not only did the
appetite for engagement reduce, but also the context in which parishes were operating shifted.

Whilst the aspirations do not change, the situation on the ground does. The strategy as previously
articulated and drafted was too complex and rigid to meet the needs of the present reality and
galvanise extensive parish engagement.

A fresh articulation of the key aims and approach was therefore needed, In doing 50 it provided an
opportunity to reset and retell the strategic story of how we will support our vision and deliver on
becoming simpler, humbler and bolder,

Introducing Barnabas
The early church were intentional in how they shared the pood news and how they organised

tnemsehves. indpired By the Holy Spirit they prayed tor, equipped, mentored, tamght and encouraged
the local church, Integral in this approach was Barnabas, Although called Joseph, his nickname as "Son
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of Encouragement” stuck. Barnabas was intentionally and prayerfully sent. He not only shared the
gospel and taught the disciples, but he modelled how best to support others in doing the same thing.

Barnabas exemplifies the approach we want 1o take as a Diocese as we seek the Holy Spirit’s help and
Euldance in ensuring every church has the chance of moving forward in mission, ministry and
sustainability in a way that is intentional, prayerful and possible.

There is a huge amount of activity taking place in the diacese, with clergy and lay striving to share
Jesus and ensure presence in every parish. There is much for us to be thankful to God for.

Yet we also know there are places where, despite the hard work of the faithful, more suppart and help
are needed. There are also places where we can no fonger just do things In the same way. That support
requires us to be intentional in our acticn and generous with our effort. But it also requires us to make
the best use of the finite resources we have available and to ensure we are using them in a way that
maximises value for the kingdom.,

It ks here that Barnabas: Encouraging Confidence intersects with that which has gone before and
provides the alignment and catalyst to move us forward.

Barnabas becomes the strategic vehicle (the How1) for achieving our vision of confident Christians,
growing churches and transforming communities (the What and the Why). It enables the achievement
of the goals previously set, but it resets the framework of ‘How" those might be achieved. This is
through moving away from an explicit focus on initiatives to instead providing intentional and
accessible support to encourage confidence, in the context parishes find themselves. Crucially it brings
the needs of the parishes into greater prominence, enabling engagement and buy in from them (the
Whao).

Put another way - Barnabas sets an overarching strategic framework around which the Diocese can
intentionally support the missional needs of parishes and can bring a focus of revitalisation, growth
and sustainability. It enables us to continue 1o respond to the missional and financial challenges, which
the diocese faces over the coming decade.

Identifying Priorities

Within this framewaork there is freedom to purposefully invest in priority areas, knowing that largeted
work in these specific areas (geographical, demographic or indeed socio-economic) will bring benefit
not only te those areas but te surrounding and similar communities as the work becomes established
and the learning shared. This approach to change enables us to drive forward significant change in a
number of places whilst maintaining progress at & macro level to achieve the six bold calls of the
Church of England vision and strategy (see below):

to doubie the number of children ond young active disciples

to become a church thot fully represents the communities we serve in age ond diversity
to revitalise the parish system

to cregte new Christian communities

to release Anglicons to live as disciples in the whote of life

fe support local churches being estoblished as hubs of formation

| btps:/hbr.cop 20070% demystifying-strategy-the-whai
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Barnabas means we can be confident in God's unfailing love for us and the church, As we seek to live
as confident Christians we want to:

« Be confident in our mission - support for churches to become confident in their use of their
building. financial and time resources; creating more opportunities to be good news in our
communities.

A porish system revitolised for mission

« Be confident in our future - ensuring our levels of clergy deployment are fit for the future. The
Project enables us to make deployment declsions in a mission led way that can give clergy and
churches the confidence that the Diocese is committed to their thriving.

A church which is younger and fully represents the communities we serve

= Be confident in our leadership - giving significant and specific support around leadership and
mentoring in the church, both for clergy in their roles, but also for church teams moving
forward in mission,

Christians envisioned, resourced and released to live a3 disciples of Jesus Christ, with churches
being communities for initial ond engaing formation

* Be confident in our witness - encouraging support for all to be confident in lhing and telling
the good news of Jesus in a rapidly changing world.

Doubling the number ef children and young octive disclples whilst revitalising and plonting
worshipping communities

Initially our focus will be on achieving this through seven streams of intervention that have been
identified for parishes and their leaders to engage in:

Leadership development for clergy
Missional leadership development
New congregations in the parish
Strategic grafting for revitalization
Buildings

Governance

Stewardship and Treasury

" ® & @®

OBJECTIVES FOR THE YEAR

The objectives that were set for 2022 were:

* Supporting churches and schools as they look to move forward following the challenges
presented by Covid-19;

® The continued implementation of the Diocesan Strategy and the use of it as a framework for
future mission planming:

* Maintained focus on supporting churches in children and youth engagement
Developing sustainable models of ministry that reflect our parish needs and enable us to
support growing churches, using the Church Support and Deployment work to drive this;

# The continued development of the Resource and Resourcing Church models across the
Chiocese;

- Thn srthen roamnet sl 8 Fhoaci o0 ] ] L] i i i T s i
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learning, with strong, transformational relationships between parish and school community;
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identifying new opportunities to utilise national church funding to enhance mission across the
Diocese;

Reviewing supplier contracts for key diocesan services and ensuring they provide value for
money;

Progressing work on the Parish Share Review: and

Establishing and enhancing the work of the DBF sub committees.

Through carrying out these objectives and in promoting the whole mission of the church (pastoral,
evangelistic, social and ecumenical) the Trustees are confident (having had regard to Charity
Commission guldance) that LDBF delivers public benefit through community engagement, resourcing
education and supporting those in need both spiritually and physically.

ACTIVITIES AND ACHIEVEMENTS IN THE YEAR

support for the Diocese's mission and strategic alms ks delivered by the Bishop and his senior team
through the LDBF Board. The team is supported by a number of key advisers including Legal, HR,
Finance, Education, Property and Safeguarding. The role of those employed to work in the central
support of the Diocese is largely to:

support and enable parishes in their engagement with their communities;

advise and support the Synod, Leeds Board, Bishop’s Staff Team and Board of Education in the
formation of policy for the Diocese;

support church schools, further and higher education Institutions in terms of governance,
religious education and collective worship, and buildings development;

ensure suitable provision and training for the safeguarding of children and vulnerable adults;
train and advise those holding positions of office and leadership in the Diocese;

support the discernment, selection, recruitment, and training for those entering licensed and
authorised ministny;

undertake the statutory work of the Church of England in the Diocese of Leeds and the
statutory work of the LDBF; and

engage in the work undertaken nationally and internationably through support and
representation on national beards, committees and working groups.

These objectives have been broadly met with key achievements including:

Successful bid for further investment of £4m over five years in the Bradford resourcing
churches programme (Mountains into Roads) which will see new congregations planted from
five resourcing churches:

Grieen ratings for Leeds and Bradford resource church programmes, which are both on track
for delivering their aims;

A successful Clergy Conference was held in Liverpool in September — the first since Covig-19;
Development of Barnabas: Encouraging Confidence - a revised strategic approach to ensure
the delivery of the diocesan vision and to ensure ongoing confidence in the future of the
Church of England. This work will become the dominant strategic focus in 2023;

The Ministry and Mission Team continued further development of ministry pathways {e.g.
waorking with children and young people, Eco Mission and Occasional preachers} and
implemented the new national discernment process for ordinands and Licensed Lay Ministers.
Training was supported by the Digital Learning Platform, which achieved a total of some 2,500
members;

An increase in the number of schools signing up to the Enhanced Services Plan provided by
the Diocesan Board of Education, the creation of a new Multi Academy Trust (Leeds Diocesan

L f | '
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successful in person education conference attended by over 200 school leaders;
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¢ Completion of the Parish Share review with recommendations made to the Board and Synod
and changes implemented in the 2023 Parish Share requests;

& Distribution of £715k energy support grants 1o 265 benefices, E11Ek in hardship grants to 165
clergy and lay employees in the diocese and £74k of bullding grants to 49 parishes;

e A new dipcesan website was commissioned and created to replace the previous version with
a more user-friendly version aimed at the clear and simple provision of information and
resources for our clergy, lay leaders and parishes;

s Instaliation of solar PV, cavity wall or loft insulation in 35 properties as part of our carbon net
zero strategy;

¢ The LDBF secured a national award as one of the top ten charity employers in the UK; and

+ Developed a new Defined Contribution pension offer for new and existing lay staff.

Volunteers

The Diocese of Leeds is dependent on the huge number of people involved in church activities both
locally and at diocesan level. We believe that the number of active volunteers {or volunteer hours)
given to the mission and ministry of the church is a key indicator of the health of a church. The service
provided to a community through church volunteering also has a significant impact on people’s
relationship to the church particularly at times of crisis. We greatly value the considerable time and
support given by all the volunteers across the Diocese in pursult of our mission.

FUTURE PLANS

The major budget element continues to be directed towards supporting ministry and mission in every
parish. The Trustees will continue to set annual budgets as appropriate and in line with the reserves
policy. The angoing objective is to respurce Diocesan needs, as determined by Synod and informed by
Iacal and national Church institutions.

In addition to the day-to-day activities of the LDBF, during 2023 we will:

#  Further refine Barnabas and set out in detail the types of support which will be available for
each of the Barnabas strands, bringing together existing areas of support and adding further
elements as needed and identified;

s  Seek funding from the national church for Barnabas, whilst continuing to focus and deliver on
out wider ministry responsibilities as well as our statutory and legal obligations;

» Continued support for national funded resource and resourcing church projects, along with
wider establishment of portfolio board to oversee strategic projects;

s Continue to focus on supporting churches in children and youth engagement, with a bid for
specific resource to support work in Wakefield as well as continued wider offers of help;

+ Progress plans to implement the recommendations of Lament into Action including seeking
the appointment of a Racial Justice Dfficer;

+ Increase focus on Carbon Net Zero activities, including developing funding plans and utilising
National Church funds to provide focused support for churches, schools and clergy properties;

s Implement plans for maximising the potential of current property assets to support financial,
environmental and social objectives as highlighted by the Archbishops’ Commission's Coming
Hame Repaort;

= Actively support all Church schools and academies to be deeply Christian places of learning,
with strong, transformational relationships between parish and school community;

* Review supplier contracts for key diocesan services and ensuring they provide value for
maney; and

& Roll out recruitment hub as part of the Safeguarding Dashboard.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Flnancial Performance

In 2022 the LDBF recorded a net deficit before investment losses of £2,264,000 on unrestricted funds.
This was £1,104,000 worse than the prior year (2021: £1,160,000 deficit). The 2021 deficit included
£950,000 Sustainability Grant from the Archbishops Council that did not occur in 2022, which
combined by increased costs has driven the higher deficit. These have been partly offset by increased
income in a number of areas, including Parish Share, property and education services.

The Parish Share request for 2022 was £15,464,000 (2021: £15,474,000] and receipts relating 1o the
2022 request amounted to £12,082 000 (2021: £11,557,000), reprisenting a collection rate of 78.1%
(2021: 74.9%). In addition, Parish Share receipts of £181,000 were received against the historical share
cutstanding from previous years (2021: £217,000) and voluntary contributions of E166,000 were

made (2021: £175,000),

Mote 2 to the financial statements has been prepared in accordance with the guidance agreed
naticnally to show the total receipt of income from parishes including receipts for a previous year, The
Trustees are grateful to all parishes for their Parish Share payments and especially to those parishes
that make their Parish Share payments by monthly instalments, which is assential in cantralling the
Diocese’s cash flow.

Expenditure from unrestricted funds on charitable activities increased by £1,015,000 to £22,141,000
{2021: £21,126,000). This was largely due to an increase of £975,000 in clergy housing costs, together
with £197,000 higher clergy stipend and national insurance costs.

Across all the funds, the capital values of investments fell by £4,198,000 [2021: £4,478,000 increase),
Of the decrease, 317,000 related to unrestricted investments (2021: £674,000 increase).

In order to support the unrestricted position, restricted funds were used to pay the 2022 chergy
pension deficit contribution of £335,000. This, combined with the revaluation of the clergy pensions
scheme, has resulted in all deficits now being cleared, This and other fund transfers were made from
restricted funds where expenditure was incurred within the general fund that was eligible for thase
funds.

A property valued at £310,000 was transferred from Benefice Housing to unrestricted funds during
the year following the completion of Pastoral Schemes. The property will continue to be used to
provide clergy housing if required but sold or rented out If no ministerial need exists. Additicnally,
properties totalling £2,781,000 and £4,220,000 have been transferred from the Pastoral Account and
Stipends Capital Fund respectively to Benefice Housing to reflect the correct allocation of parsonage
houses. Also, a property valued at £695,000 has been transferred from Benefice Housing to the
Pastoral fellowing the purchase of a replacement parsonage property. Likewise, and cash proceeds of
£497,000 have transferred from Benefice Housing to the Pastoral Account following the sale of a

parsonage property pending a pastoral scheme.

As a result of the above, there was an overall funds decrease of £5,820,000 (2021: £4,026,000
mcrease) of which £1,993,000 (2021: £3,155,000 increase) related to unrestricted funds,

The Trustees have prepared a budget for 2023 based on 2 4% increase in stipend and salary costs
(albeit 5% has subsequently been awarded) and targeting a share collection rate of B2 6%, Including
the transfer of £600,000 from restricted reserves to fund applicable activities, the budgel is for a
deficit of £549,000. However, given the inflationary pressures on churches and the diocese alike,
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External factors affecting performance

The Parish Share, which is contributed by PCCs towards the ministry and other costs of the Diocese, is
a voluntary contribution and is budgeted to provide 65% of the Diocesan income in 2023. In addition,
the Diocese has significant payments to the clergy and staff pension schemes in order to contribute
towards covering pension fund deficits,

Principal funding sources

In 2022 62.6% [(2021: 60.1%) of unrestricted income of the LDBF came from the Parish Share and 15.0%
(2021: 20.4%] from the National Church,

Financial sustainability

LDBF has sound financial management, however, the Trustees remain conscious of the risks associated
with the Parish Share fund collection and inflating costs and therefore its ability to adequately
resource Diocesan activity. Whilst Parish Share collection has improved from the lows of 2020 and
2021, it remains below the pre-Covid-19 levels, It now seems unlikely that Parish Share will return 1o
levels seen in 2019 for some time. However, the Trustees are confident this can be absorbed through
a combination of reductions in expenditure; the receipt of Mational Church Fguidity support
{automatically provided to all qualifying dioceses); and the appropriate utilisation of both unrestricted
and restricted reserves (e.g. Pastoral Fund and Stipends Fund].

Going concenn

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Trustees have taken note
of the guidance issued by the Financial Reporting Council on Going Concern Assessments in
determining that this is the appropriate basis of preparation of the financial statements and have
considered & number of factors. As noted above, the legacy of the Covid-19 pandemic and the high
inflation experienced in 2022 has created a number of financial challenges that continue to be
navigated, The Trustees are confident that the Balance Sheet remains strong and is sufficient to absorb
deficits that may arise over the near term. A Cost Review was completed in early 2021, which provided
a structure to balance the budget over the longer term. Additionally, in autumn 2022 the Board agreed
@ higher level of restricted fund transfers (i.e. from the Fastoral Account, 5554 Fund and Stipends
Capital Fund where spending criteria is met) for up to five years to support the unrestricted position,
As a consequence, the Trustees have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they continue
10 adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual report and accounts,

Key Management remuneration policy

The policy for remunerating key management is in accordance with the salary scales approved
annually by the Leads Dictetan Board.

Significant Property Transactions

The net book value of land and buildings purchased and disposed of during the vear totalled
£1,927,000 and £1, 805 000 respectively. The Leeds Board”s policy i

to replace unsuitable properties:
¢ o accommodate the changing geographical deployment of clergy within the Diocese:
e to dispose of properties for which there is no ministry need and which do not provide
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& o realise development poteéntial in some properties, thereby using our resources more
effectively for the ministry of the Church,

During the year two properties were purchased, one as a replacernent parsonage property and the
second for a suffragan bishop.

Also during the year seven properties were sold. Of the properties sold, six were DBF properties (either
being surplus curates’ properties or former vicarages transferred to the DBF as part of pastoral
schemes) and one was a parsonage property (with funds held in the Pastoral Fund pending the
completion of a pastoral scheme),

Balance Sheet position

The Trustees consider that the balance sheet together with details in note 23 show broadly that the
restricted and endowment funds are held in an appropriate mix of investment and current assets given
the purposes for which the funds are held. While the net assets at the Balance Sheet date totalied
£198.3m (2021: £204.1m), it must be remembered that included in this total are properties, mostly in
use for the ministry, whose value amounted to £157.5m (2021: £157.4m). Much of the remainder of
the assets shown in the Balance Sheet are held in restricted and endowed funds, and cannot
necessarily be used for the general purposes of the LDBF.

The 2022 accounts include the impact of the latest revaluation of the Clergy Defined Benefit Pension
Scheme, revealed a surplus of £560m. Following finalisation of the 31 December 2031 valuation,
deficit contributions ceased with effect from 1 January 2023, since the Scheme was in surplus.
Additionally, although the Lay Workers Pension Schemes valuation at 31 December 2022 has not yet
been completed, deficit contributions have ceased from 1 January 2023 and the remaining £12,000
liabllity has been written off given The Pension Boards confidence that the Schemes are now in

surplus,
Reserves policy
Free reserves

The Reserves Policy sets a target free reserves range of £4.1m to £5.6m. The lower bound is based on
an analysis of income sources and their potential vulnerability against budgeted performance - the
largest portion of this relating to Parish Share [£2.7m). The upper bound remains based on 3 months
budgeted unrestricted expenditure for the following financial year. The Trustees define the free
reserves as the Unrestricted Net Current Assets Less the Assets Held for resale plus the unrestricted
unlisted investrments, Actual free reserves as at 31 December 2022 totalled £5.2m (2021 £6.7m). The
reduction from 2021 is due to the operating deficit, the decrease in investment valuations and pension
deficit contributions, partly offset by sale of unrestricted properties.

Reserves tied up in fived ossets

The general fund comprises net assets amounting to £50.2m of which £47.9m relates to tangible fixed
assets, £2.5m investments and £3.3m current assets, partly offset by long-term labilities of £3.5m.

Degignated funds

The Trustees may designate additional unrestricted reserves to be retained for an agreed purpose

where this is considered to be prudent. Such designated reserves are reviewed on an annial basis and

returned Lo the general fund in the event that the purpose of their designation is no longer considered
i L i
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intended use of tt:H!- reserve is setoul in note 23. At 31 December 2022 total designated reserves were
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£734,000 (2021: £954,000). The funds spent in the year all relate 1o the Carbon Reduction Fund where
work has taken place to install solar PV, cavity wall and/for loft insulation in ¢.40 properties.
Restricted ond endpwment funds

As set out in note 22 LDBF holds and administers a large number of restricted and endowment funds.
As at 31 December 2022 restricted funds totalled £16.5m (2021: £20.2m) and endowment funds
totalled £130.7m (2021: £130.7m). These funds are not available for the general purposes of the LDBF.

Grant making policy

Grants are made to the National Church to cover a proportion of its central costs and alsa ta cover the
cost of training for ministry {see note 12 to the financial statements). Grants are pald to other
connected charities and to other charitable projects, which support the furtherance of LDBFs
objectives,

Fundralsing

The LDBF provides guidance to the parishes with regards to fundraising, but does not engage in
fundraising activities itself. Due regard is given to the Fundraising Code of Practice set by the
Fundraising Regulator when providing advice to the parishes,

Investment policy
LDBF's investment policies are based on two key policies:

The Trustees have a policy to invest in accordance with the ethical investment policy of the Church of
England Ethical Investment Advisory Group - this includes ensuring that investments are held in
companies, which have high standards of corporate governance and act in a responsible way towards
stakeholders.

Long-term responsibilities - the Trustees are aware of their long-term responsibilities in respect of
endowed funds and as a result follow a correspondingly prudent gpproach to investment decisions.
Investment policy for long-term funds is aimed primarily at generating a sustainable income with due
regard 10 the need for the preservation of capital value and the possible need to realise investments
to meet operational needs. The glabe investments are held for the purpose of raising income to
achieve the maximum contribution possible to clergy stipends on an ongoing basis. Unrestricted and
restricted fund investments are Invested to balance income, liquidity and the maintenance of capital.

The LDBF is empowered by its memorandum of association to imvest monies not immediately required
for its purposes, In addition, the LDBF acts as trustee of a number of trust funds, and these must be
invested in accordance with the related trusts. The LDBF's policy is 10 review regularly the assets of
each fund for which it is respensible, in relation to the purposes of each fund, and to identify
appropriate investment vehicles. Note 23 provides details of the assets of each fund, together with
the related purposes, and Note 17 summarises the movements in investments during the year.

The CCLA investments total return performance against the benchmarks in 2022 were:

Fuenel Benchmark
CBF Church of England Investment Fund 5. 16% -10.17%
CBF Church of England Property Fund -7.80% -8.71%

The five year performance against the benchmark and the benchmark composites are available from
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Trustees are responsible for the identification, mitigation and/or management of risk, To achieve
this a risk register is maintained, which includes all risks identified, along with owners, mitigating
actions and review dates. The register is maintained by management on an ongoing basis and is
subject to review by the Audit Committee twice a year and by the Trustees an an annual basis, though
an updated register is presented to the Board at every meeting. The responsibility for delivery of the
mitigatien strategies identified by the register are delegated to the Diocesan Secretary.

The risk register identifies key areas where the risk of either fallure to act or the impact of the events
is considered *high'. These areas and the associated mitigation strategies are:

Parish Share: Collection is considerably less than the budget resulting in a deficit on general funds.
® Accurate budgeting of Parish Share receipts to enable expenditure to be appropriately
aligned;
® Collection statistics are preduced and circulated on a monthiy basis to track performance and
identify potential Issues earky;
* Area personnel are expressly tasked with identifying, reperting on and supporting thoze
parishes where there is considered to be a significant risk of under-collection.

Financiol Risk: The risk of failing to achieve approved budget or having insufficient liguid resources to
gt [Eabilities as they fall due.
*  The financial position is closely monitored at department level, with regular reports circulated
and regular meetings held with budget holders by the CFO and/or Finance Manager:
* Regular reporting to FAIC and the LDBF:
* A Cost Review exercise was presented to the Board in February 2021, which identified three
levels of cost savings to ensure a balanced budget is achieved over the next four years; and
* A clear purchase authorisation process is in place,

Sofeguarding & Inclusion: Where there is an occurrence of child, vulnerable adult or domestic abuse

by someone working for or on behalf of the Church or invalved in the life of the Church.

The Diocese employs a strong safeguarding team that includes specialist training support;

Policies are aligned with those of the national church;

All parishes are instructed to adopt and implement the National Church's safeguarding policy;

Training is compulsory for all relevant staff and volunteers - failure to complete the tralning

results in the removal of the ability to undertake roles and functions:

* A new safeguarding case management system has been implemented, along with a
safeguarding dashboard for all parishes to use:

= A full audit of live and past cases (Past Cases Review 2] was undertaken between 2020-20232.
Independent reviewers considered all historic and current files and did not identify any
material concerns or failings in relation to safeguarding; and

® The Diocesan Safeguarding Advisory Panel, with an independent chair, continues to provide
owersight on policy and practice.

& ¥ & @
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STRUCTURE AND GOVERNANCE
summary Information about the structure of the Church of England

The Church of England is the established church and HM The King is the Supreme Governor. It is
organised into two provinces (Canterbury and York) and 41 Dioceses. Each Diocese is a See under the
care of a Bishop, who is charged with the cure of souls of all the people within that geographical area.
This charge is shared with priests within benefices and parishes, which are sub-divisions of the
Diocese.,

The National Church has a General Synod comprised of ex-officio and elected representatives from
each Diocese. It agrees and lays before Parfiament measures for the governance of the Church’s affairs
which, if enacted by Parliament, have the force of statute law. In addition to the General Synod, the
Archbishops’ Council has & coordinating rele for work authorised by the Synod; the Church
Commissioners manage the historic assets of the Church of England; and the Church of England
Pension Board administers the pension schemes for clergy and lay workers. Each Diocese Is episcopally
lead and synodically governed, The Diocese itself is divided into 21 deaneries, each with its own
Deanery Synod. Within each parish there is a parochial church council, which shares with the parish
priest responsibility for the mission of the church in that place, in a similar way to that in which the
Bishop shares responsibilities with the Diocesan Synod.

Whilst each Diocese Is a separate legal entity, with a clear responsibility for a specific geographical
area, being part of the Church of England requires and enables each Diocese to seek support from and
application for partnership with neighbouring Dioceses.

Parochial Church Council {"PCE™)

The PCC is the elected governing body of an individual parish which broadly is the smallest pastoral
area in the Church of England. Typically, each parish has one parish church. The PCC is made up of the
imcumbent as chair, the churchwardens and a number of elected and ex officie members, Each PCC i
a charity and, in compliance with the Charities Act 2011, the majority of PCCs are currently exempt
from registration with the Charity Commission, Since October 2008 all PCCs with gross income above
£100,000 for the year are required to register with the Charity Commission. Except where shown, the
transactions of PCCs do not form part of these financial statements. Financial statements of an
individual PCC can be obtained from the relevant PCC treasurer,

Parishes

A benefice is a parish or group of parishes served by an incumbent who typically receives a stipend
and use of a parsonage house from the Diocese for carrying out their duties,

A deanery is a group of parishes over which an area dean has oversight and an archdeaconry is a group
of deaneries for which an archdeacon is responsible,

The Diocese s then the principal pastoral, and in turn financial and administrative, resource of the

Church of England, encompassing the various archdeaconries under the spiritual leaderchip of the
Diosecan Bithap,
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Crganisational structure

The Leeds Dietesan Board of Finance {“LDBF") is a company limited by guarantes (Mo. BA23593) and
a registered charity (No. 1155876) governed by s Memorandum and Articles of Association.

The company’s principal activity s to assist, promote and further the refigious and other charitable
work of the Church of England within the Diocese of Leeds. It was established in its present form In
December 2013,

The Members of LDBF under company law have a personal liability limited to £1 under their guarantes
as company Members in the event of it being wound up.

Governance and pelicy of the Diocesan Board of Finance is the responsibility of the Diocesan Synod
members, who are also members of the company. Following the changes in governance approved in
March 2015, the Bishop of Leeds is the ex-officio Chair of the Diocesan Board of Finance. The trustees
are the Diocesan Bishop, the Area Bishops, one Archdeacon, one Dean, the Chair of the House of
Clergy of the Diocesan Synod, the Chair of the House of Laity of the Digcesan Synod, two Clergy and
four lay pecple elected from and by the members of Diocesan Synod every three years, along with
five people nominated by the trustees of the Diocesan Board of Finance and ratified by the Diocesan
Synod. The most recent general elections were held in September 2021 and casual vacancy elections
in March 2023. The most recent trustee nomination was ratified in Mareh 20232, The details of Trustees
whe served during the year are set out on page 21.

The Diocesan Synod, the statutory governing body of the Diocese, is an elected body drawn from
across the Diocese with responsibility for setting the vision and strategy of the Diocese, guided by the
Leeds Board. The Diocesan Synod membership is elected every three years, the last general elections
having been April - June 2021. The Synod elects six of the 21 Trustees of the Diocesan Board of
Finance, and ratifies the nomination of a further five members. The appropriate House of the Synod
elects the Chair of their House. The Chair of the House of Clergy and the Chair of the House of Laity of
the Diocesan Synod are ex-officio members of the Leeds DBF. The LDBF i< a separate legal entity with
a governing memaorandum and articles of association and has clear responsibilities under both
tompany and charity law. Additionally, the LDBF is subject to the direction of the Synod in all its
activities, unless such direction is not in accordance with the Eoverning documents or statutory
regulations,

The main features of the Diocesan Synod approved governance model are:

® Diccesan Synod members are the Members of the LDBF COmpany.

* There is a single Board that combines the functions of the Standing Committee of Synod, the
LOBF, Bishops Council, Diccesan Mission & Pastoral Committee and the Parsonages Board,
thereby bringing together all major policy, strategy and financial issues into one forum. The
vore of this Board is a set of Trustees elected and selected for their skills, experience and
background appropriate to the nature of the business in hand.

* Area Mission & Pastoral Sub-Committees with delegated responsibilities enabling priorities
for Mission and Ministry within each episcopal area to be determined locally, with local
representation from deaneries,

®  Advisory groups designed to enable lay and clergy input to all aspects of Diocesan business on
an enduring or as required basis.

Decision-making structure

The Board is the Standing Committee of the Synod and addresses the issues of strategies, policles and
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directly 10 the Synod and includes all the functions of the traditional statutony boards.
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The Diocesan Mission and Pastoral Committee delegates significant responsibilities relating to mission
and pastoral activities to Area Mission & Pastoral Sub-Committees, thereby enabling the Area Bishops
with local representalives to formulate local priorities. Deanery Synods are represented on Area
Mission & Pastoral Sub-Committees and these are reflected in the Mission & Pastoral Constitution.

The Diocesan Advisory Committee and the Strategic Safeguarding Committee are highly specialised in
their work and content, and these remain as separate entities.

Each Area Bishop is accountable to the Diocesan Bishop for the delivery of Mission and Ministry within
the Area in line with delegated responsibilities laid down in Instruments and other formal measures.

The Diocesan Secretary is accountable for the functions of officers and employed staff in supporting
parishes and Area Teams,

Diocesan Synod has delegated the following functions to the LDBF:

hManagement of the funds and property of the Diocese;

Preparation of annual estimates of expenditure;

Advising on action needed to raise the income necessary to finance expenditure;

Oversight of expenditure by bodies in receipt of Diocesan Synod's funds against estimates of
expenditure approved by Diocesan Synod; and

* Advising Diocesan Synod of the financial aspects of its policy and on any other matters
referred to it.

& & & =

Committee structure

Leeds Dipcesan Board of Finance
The Leeds Diocesan Board is the formal Bishop's Council, Diocesan Board of Finance, the Diocesan
Mission and Pastoral Committee and Parsonage Board; its membership is se1 out on page 20.

Trustees are provided with induction guidance when first appointed and receive cngoing training, as
appropriate. Some senior staff have job titkes incorporating the title ‘Director” but they are not
Trustees of the company for the purposes of company law.

Diocesan Board of Education ("DBE”)

The DBE consists of three LDBF Board members and ten nominated appointments. The DBE oversees
the setting of education strategy and reviews progress on an ongoing basis against this. The DBE has
sub-committees with particular responsibility for Finance and Education Bufldings.

Diocesan Advisory Commities ["DACT)

The DAC advises on matters affecting churches and places of warship such as the granting of faculties,
architecture, archaeology, art and the history of places of worship, the use and care of places of
worship and their contents and the care of churchyards.,

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of five members, one of whom must be a member of both the Finance
Assets and Investments Committee and the Leeds Board. The Chairperson is appointed by the Board
and must not be the Chair of the Board or & member of FAIC. The Audit Committee responsibilities
inclede considering the appointment of the external auditor, the review and agreeing of the annual
report and accounts before submission to the Board and the review of the effectivensss of internal
control systems,

Digcesan Mission & Pastoral Committee ("DMPCT)
The membership of the [Mocesan Mission and Pastoral Committee i the Leeds Board members with
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the exception of the five Area Bishops. The four Archdeacons who are non-Leeds Board members are
ex officio members of the DMPC. The DMPC is a statutory body as set out in the Mission and Pastoral
Measure 2011. The DMPC has delegated its functions to five Episcopal Area Mission and Pastoral
Committees,

Strategic Safeguarding Group

The Group includes an independent chairperson, the Diocesan Bishop, an Ares Bishop, a Cathedral
Dean, an Archdeacon, the Lead Officer responsible for safeguarding, the Diocesan Secretary, the
Registrar, the Bishop®s Chaplain, individuals representing external agencies imvolved in safeguarding
and the Director of Ministry and Mission,

The Group ks responsible for the oversight of policy, procedures, training and guidance to the directors,
diocesan officers and parishes on safeguarding matters and s accountable for safeguarding work
throughout the Diocess,

Finance, Assets and Investments Committee [“FAIC")

The Committee’s composition is at least three members of the Leeds DBF, plus up to seven members
nominated by the Leeds Board. The Chairperson must be a member of the Leeds Board. The FAIC
menitors the monthly management accounts, the preparation of the budget and sustainability plan,
the progress of major property sales, the performance of investment assets and development of

strategic projects.

Property Committes

The Committee consists of a Chairperson appeinted by the Diocesan Bishop, the five archdeacons,
one clergy person elected by the House of Clergy of the Diocesan Synod, one clergy person (with
relevant skills appointed by the Leeds Board, two lay people elected by the House of Laity of the
Diocesan Synod, four lay people [with relevant skills) appointed by the Leeds Board, one lay person
appointed by the Leeds Board, one clergy person (or lay person if the Chair is clergy) co-opted by the
committee and one lay person (or clergy if the Chair is lay) co-opted by the committee

The Property Committee is responsible for carrying out the delegated functions of the Parsonages
Board under the Repairs of Benefice Buildings Measure 1972 and under the terms of its constitution
and subject to any directions given by the Leeds Board, overseas the management, maintenance and
upkeep of all property assets of the Leeds Diccesan Board of Finance. The committee is also
responsible for the ensuring the obligations of the Leeds Diocesan Board of Finance as custodian
trustee are met in respect of properties held by parochial church councils. In practical terms this
includes overseeing the development of polices and strategies, monitoring their implementation and
reporting on this to the Board, and reviewing and approving property transactions,

Delegation of day to day delivery

The Trustees and the committees and advisory and scrutiny groups which assist them in the fulfilment
of their responsibilities, rely upon the Diocesan Secretary and his colleagues for the delivery of the
day to day activities of the company. The Diocesan Secretary is given specific and general delegated
authority to manage the business of the LDBF in accordance with the policies framed by the Trustees,

Funds held ag Custodian Trustes

The LDBF is the custodian trustee of assets held on permanent trust by virtue of the Parachial Church
Councils (Powers) Measure 1956 and the Incumbents and churchwardens (Trusts) Measure 1964
where the managing Trustees are parochial church councils and others. These assets are naot
aggregated in the financial statements as the LDBF does not contrel them, and they are segregated
Feve Thes. | i aivaty: Byl miane of i ceppriasin bk SRR Rl G it ool St

details of financial trust assets, whose market value amounted to £16,807.000 a1 31 December 107

17




LEEDS DIOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE

(2021: £17,150,000), are available from the LDBF on request, and are summarised in Note 29. Where
properties are held as custodian trustee, the deeds are identified as such and held in safe custody.,

Related Parties
Related parties include:

* The Archbishops’ Council te which the LDBF pays a donation based on an apportionment
system for funding national training of ordinands and the activities of the various national
boards and cowncils,

* The Church Commissioners from which the LDBF receives grants and which acts on behalf of
clergy with HM Revenue and Customs. The LDBF pays for clergy stipends through the Church
Commissioners.

¢« The Church of England Pensions Board, to which the LDBF pays retirement benefit
contributions for stipendiary clergy and employees, It also offers schemes to provide housing
for clergy in retirement.

= Parochial Church Councils are all independent charities and the company has no control over
them. The accounts of PCCs and deaneries do not form part of these financial statements.
PCCs are able to influence the decision-making within LDBF and at Diocesan Synod level,
through input of their Deanery Synods.

Transactions with the main categories of related parties are identified in appropriate places
throughout the financial statements. Where materiality of the transactions merits more detalled
disclosure this is given in note 28 to the financial statements.

Connected charities
The Trustees consider the following to be eonnected charities:

The cathedrals are the mother churches of the Diocese and legally constituted as separate charities.
Trustees’ report and financial statements may be obtained from the:

¢ ‘Wakefield Cathedral Office, Wakefield Cathedral, Morthgate, Wakefield, WF1 1HG.
# Ripon Cathedral Office, Liberty Court House, Minster Road, Ripon, North Yorkshire HG4 105.
# Bradford Cathedral Office, 1 Stott Hill, Bradford, West Yorkshire, BD1 4EH.

The Leeds Board is sole trustee to the charities and trusts given below. The Leeds Diocesan Board of
Finance does not benefit from these charities and they are not included in the annual accounts:

Armiey Deanery Schools Charity — support of schools in the Armley Deanery

Brewin's Charity — support of clergy pensiaons

Forcett Churchyard Trust — upkeep of Forcett churchyard

Harrogate 5t Mary Cockroft Fund — upkeep of vault at All Saints Cemetery, Harrogate
North Rigton School House Fund - provision of special benefits and education in the school
Stewart's Charity - support to specified schooks in Leeds

Romaldkirk & Cotherstone Fund — upkeep of churches in Romaldkirk and Cotherstane
Whitkirk Deanery Curacy Houses Fund — upkeep of curacy houses in Whitkirk

Wray Bequest — ecclesiastical purposes the parish of 5t Anne's Catterick

Rachel Dixon Charity = support of widows or unmarried daughters of the clergy
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Other connected charities with which the Board co-operates in pursuit of its charitabile objectives are:

* Bishop's Development Fund, Thomes Park Campus, Thornes Park, Wakefield, West Yorkshire,

WF2 BQZ (Charity number 700588)
® Bradford Diocesan Council for Soclal Ald, 17-19 York Place, Leeds, West Yorkshire, LS1 2EX

{Charity number 226436)
* Near Neighbours, Church House, 27 Great Smith Street, Londan, SW1P 3AZ (Cha rity number

1142426, Company number 07603217)
» Wellsprings Together, Church House, 17-19 York Place, Leeds, West Yorkshire, L51 2EX
(Charity Number 1179481, Company Number 11423641)

The assets of the above charities and trusts are held separately by themselves and are segregated
from the assets of the Company.




LEEDS DIOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE
TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES

The trustees {who are also directors of Leeds Diocesan Board of Finance for the purposes of company
law] are responsible for preparing the Trustees” Report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and Unlted Kingdom Accounting Standards [United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).

Company law requires the trusiees to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of the incoming resources
and application of resources, including the income and expenditure, of the charitable company for
that period. In preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to;

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

» observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP (FRS 102);

¢ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

# state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

¢ prepare the financizl statements on the going concern basis unbess it is inappropriate to
presume that the charity will continue in business.

The trustees are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable
accuracy &t any time the financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that
the financial staterments comply with the Companies Act 2006, They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

In so far as the trustees are aware:

# there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditor is unaware;
and

¢ the trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themseklves aware of
any relevant audit information and 1o establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the charitable company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the reparation and dissemination of financial staterments may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.
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ADMINISTRATIVE DETAILS

Trustees
Mo Trustee had any beneficial interest in the company during 2022, The following Trustees were in
past either during the year and/or at the date of this report:

Chairman:
The Right Revd Nicholas Baines — Bishop of Leeds

Ex-officio:
The Right Revd Anthony Robinson - Area Bishop of Wakefield
The Right Revd Helen-Ann Hartley — Area Bishop of Ripon [resigned D3 February 2023)
The Right Revd Paul Slater - Bishop of Kirkstall {retired 31 January 2022)
The Right Revd Arun Arora — Bishop of Kirkstall (from 15 July 2022)
The Right Revd Toby Howarth - Area Bishop of Bradford
The Right Revd Jonathan Gibbs — Area Bishop of Huddersfield (resigned 24 May 2022)
The Revd Rachel Firth — Chair of the House of Clergy of the Diocesan Synod
Mr Matthew Ambler - Chair of the House of Lalty of the Diocesan Synod

Elected by the Deans:
The Very Revd John Dobson - Dean of Ripen Cathedral

Elected by the Archdeacons:
The Ven Paul Ayers

Elected by:
Synod House of Clergy:
The Revd Nigel Wright (resigned 16 November 2022)
The Revd Eve Ridgeway (from 01 March 2022)
The Rewd Gary Waddington (from 18 April 2023)

Synod House of Laity:
hir Andrew Maude
kir Christopher Thompson
Mr Richard Pattingon (from 18 April 2023)
Mr Roger Lazenby (from 18 April 2023)

Nominated by the Board:
Canon Mr Irving Warnett
Mrs Marilyn Banister
Canan Mrs Jane Evans
Mirs Jan Ali (from 12 March 2022)
The Revd Canon Kathryn Fitzsimons (resigned 16 March 2022)

Senior staff and advisers
Diocesan Secretary lonathan Wood
Chief Financial Dfficer Geoff Park
Director of Ministry and Mission The Revd Canon Andrew Norman
Director of Education Canon Richard Noake
Director of Strategy Implementation Jaohn Enox
& Head of Froperty
Director of People and Engagement Anna Mitchell
Director of Church Revitalisstion The Rewd Jude Smiith

Director of Commiunications Chris Tate
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Registered Dffice:

Principal Bankers

Auditors

Diocesan Registrar

Investment advizers

Glebe Agents

Insurance Brokers

Frincipal Insurers

In approving this Trustees’ Report, the Trustees are also approving the Strategic Report included on

Church House, 17-19 York Place, Leeds, LS1 2E%

Santander, 44 Merrion Street, Leeds, L52 8IQ

Yorkshire Bank plc, 6-10 Northgate, Wakefield, WF1 1TA

Matwest Bank plc, Leeds City Office, B Park Row, Leeds, L51 105

Barclays Bank plc, PO Box 245, 10 Market Street, Bradford, BD 1 1XW
Saffery Champness LLP, Mitre House, North Park Road, Harrogate HG1 SRX

David Whitaker, Lupton Fawcett LLP
Yorkshire House, East Parade, Leeds, L51 5BD

CCLA Investment Management Ltd
Senator House, 85 Queen Victoria Street, London, ECAV 4ET

Dacre Son & Hartley, Station Road, Otley, LS21 3DR

Stephenson & Son, York Auction Centre, Murton, York, YO19 5GF
Cartar Jonas, 9 Bond Street, Leeds L51 22

PIB Insurance Brokers, Poppleton Grange, York, Y026 6GZ

EiG, Beaufort Howse, Brunswick Road, Gloucester, GL1 1LI7

pages 4 = 12 within their capacity as company directors.

QN BEHALF OF THE TRUSTEES

+|\[uf;.ﬂﬂ L‘Jj M:M

The Right Revd Nicholas Baines lonathan Wood
Chairman Secretary
25 May 2023 25 May 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LEEDS DIOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Leeds Diocesan Board of Finance for the year ended 31 December

2022 which comprise the statement of financial sctivities, balance sheet and the cash fiow statement, and notes
to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has
bedn applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including
Finaneisl Reporting Standard 102, the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial stetements:

* give 3 true and fair view of the charitable company’s state of affairs as a1 31 December 2022 and of Its
incoming resaurces and application of resources, indeding its income and expenditure, for the year then
ended;

* have been properly prepared in accerdance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

* have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006,

Basis for opinlon

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing [UK) [I5As (UK]) and applicable
taw. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described bn the Auditor's responsitdiities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our reporl. We are Independent of the charitable Company in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statéments In the Lk,
Including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in aceardance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obiained is sufficient and appropriaie to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In awditing the financlal statements, we have concluded that the trustees’ use of the going concern basis af
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the charitable company's ability to
continue as @ going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are
authorised for Bsue.

Qur responsibllities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respest 16 going concern are deserbed In the
relevant sections of this repart.

Other Information

The trustees are responsible for the other information, The other information comprises the Information
included in the annval report, other than the financiad statements and cur auditor’s report therson. Our opénion
ori the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except 1o the extent otherwise explicitly
slated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

Qur responsibdlity is to read the other information and, in doing so, conssder whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencles ar apparent material
missatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement In the financial
statements themsalves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there i 3 material
risstatement of this ather information we are reguired to report that fact.

We hiave nothing to report in this regand,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LEEDS DIOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE

Opintons an other matters prescribed by the Companles Act 2006
In our epinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the sudit:
¢ the information given in the Trustees' Annual Report which includes the Directors’ Report and the
Strategic Report for the financigl year for which the financial statements are prepared i3 consistent with
the financial statements; and
e the Trustees' Annual Report which includes the Directors” Report and the Strategic Reporn had been
prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
in thie light of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its enwironment obtained in the
coursa of the audit, we have nat identified matenial misstaterments in the Trustees’ Annual Report and Strategic

Report,

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 20006 requires us Lo
repart to you if, in owr opinign;
# adeguate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have nol besn
recedved from branches not visited by us; or
the finandial statements are not in agreement with the acoounting records and returns; or
certain disclosures of trustess’ remuneration specified by w ang not made; or
we have not recefved all the information and explanations we require for cur awdit,

Responsibilities of trustess

A5 explained more fully in the Trustees' Responsibilities Statement set out on page 20, the trustees (who are
akso directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law] are responsible for the preparation
of the financiaf statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such Internal conteol
a5 the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financlal staterments that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to frawd or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the charitable compamy®s abiligy
to continue & & going concenn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to golng concern and using the galng
concern basls of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liguidate the chaditable company oF 10 caase
operations, or have no realistic allernative 1o do 0.

Auditor's responsibliities for the audit of the financial statements
We have been appainted as auditors under the Compandes Act 2006 and report In accordance with regulaticng
made under that Act.

Dur objectives are to obiain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable asswrance & a high bewel of assurance, but is not o guarantee that an awdit conducted in
accordance with 1545 [LE) will abways detect & materlal misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expecied to influgnce the economic decisions of wiers taken on the basis of these financial siatemeants,

Irregularities, inciuding frawd, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations, We design procedures
in ling with our responsibilities, outlined abowve, o detect material misstatements In respect of imegularities,
including fraud, The specific procedures for this engagement and the extent to which these are capable of
detecting irregularities, including Iraud are detailed below.

Identifying and ascessing risks refated to irregularities:

We assessed the susceptibility of the chantable company’s financial statements to material misstatement and
how fraud might ooowr, including through discussians with the trustees, discussions within our audit team
planning meeting, updating our record of infernal controds and ensuring these controds operated as intended,

W ewnluial pd anssible inrent ves faod anpoctonileeg for fraidilent manimsdatinn of tha finaneial efafarmpnic Win
identified laws and regulations that are of significance In the context of the charitable company by discuisions
with trustees and updating our understanding of the sector in which the charitable company operaties.
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LEEDS DMOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LEEDS DIOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE

Laws and regulations of direct significance in the context of the charitable company include The Companies Acl
2006, and guidance lssued by the Charity Commission for England and Wales and the Church of England
Measures.

Audit response 1o risks identified:

We considered the extent of compliance with these liws and regulations as part of our audit procedures on the
related finandial statement iems including a review of financial statement disdosures. We reviewed the
charitable company’s records of breaches of laws and regulations, minutes of meetings and correspandence
with relevant authorities to identify potential materisl misstatements arising. We discussed the charitable
company’s policies and procedures for compliance with laws and regulations with members af Fsagiment
responsible for compliance,

During the planning meeting with the audit team, the engagement partner drew attention to the key areas which
fmight involve non-compliance with laws and reguiations or fraud. We enguired of management whether they
were aware of any instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations or knowledge of any actual, suspected
or alleged fraud. We addressed the risk of fraud through management override of controls by testing the
appropriateness of journal entries and identifying any significant transactions that were unusual or outside the
normal course of business, We assessed whether judgements made in making accounting estimates gave rise 1o
& possible indication of management bias. At the completion stage of the audit, the engagement partner’s
review induded enjuring that the team had approached their werk with appropeiate professional scepticism
and thus the capacity to identify non-compliance with laws and regulations and fraud.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the further removed non-compliance
with aws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial staterments, the less likely
we would becorne aware of it. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due io frawd is higher than
the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may invelve deliberate concealment by, for example,
forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through coliusion.

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council's website at:

www.fre.org.uk/puditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This repart is made sclely to the charitable company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable
tompamy’s members those matters we are required 10 state to them In an auditer's report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
the charitable company and the charitable company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opiniens we have formed.

ey Qe

Sally Appleton [Senior Statutary Auditor]
for and on behall of Saffery Champness LLP
Chartered Acoountants

Stetutory Auditors

Date: 7§ m.l{:l.nﬂi

Ssffery Champness LLP is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of section 1212 of the Companies Act 2006

v uf
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LEEDS DMOCESAN BOARD OF FIMAMNCE

STATEMENT OF THE FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Unrestricted funds Restricied Endowment Total funds  Total funds

General Designated  Funds Funds 022 2021
Nate E£"000 £'000 £'000 £7000 £'000 £'000

Intome and endowments
from:
Donations 2

Faresh contributions 12429 - - . 12,429 11,989

Archbishop's Council 2970 - 2,130 - 5,090 L5616

Dither donations = . 47 . a4 564
Charitable activities 3 1,737 - - . 1,737 1,483
Other activitles 4 1,155 - - . 1,155 811
Inserstments 5 ] - b 41 1,153 1077
Oiher [ arn - 9 37 766 754
Tatal 19,744 - 2,690 378 72,812 21434
Expendliture on
Raiging funds 7 71 . . = 7l L
Charitable scthities 8 22141 158 2,188 75 24,562 22,840
Pension deficit valuation
mavements 27 {236) . . . {236) {250]
Other o 3z - - 5 a7 2432
Total 22,008 158 2 1ER ED 24,434 22 886
Met [expenditure)/income
befare investment gains (2.264) [158) 2 %8 (1,622) (A5}
Het (losshgain on investments [317) (2] [1,759) (2,120 [4,198) 4,478
Het (expenditure]fincome {2.581) {180) [1.257) [1.822) (=830 40X
Transfers between funds 14 588 - {2356} 1,768 " -
Met movement in fundd 1,993) {160} {3,613} {5d) {5820} 4,026
Total funds brought forward 21 52,214 o5 20,193 130,725 204,085 200,050
Total funds carrbed foremard 22 5027 a4 16,574 130,671 198 265 204,085

- = —_— ES [ — ] = — —

Al activities derive lrom continuing activities. The notes on pages 30 to 59 form part of the financial statemenis




LEEDS DICCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
For the year ended 31 Decermber 2032

Tatal Total

2022 2021

£'000 £'000
Total Income 22,434 id.433
Expenditure (24,354) {22,8037]
Operating [deficit]/surplus for the year {1,920) (SE5)
Het {foss)/gaing on investments {2,078} 2216
Net income For the year [3.294) 1647
Other comprehensive income:
Net assets transferred (to)/from endowments [1,768) E.450
Total comprehenshve income (5. 76E) 7087

e ——1 F— |
The income and expenditure account is derived from the Statement of Financial Acthaities with movermnenis in

endowment funds excluded to comply with company law. All income and expenditure is derived from
contlinuing activities.
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LEEDS DEOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE

BALAMNCE SHEET
At 31 December 20232

Company Number — BE23503

FIMED ASSETS
Tangible asseqy
Investments

CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors

Cash on deposit
Cash at bank and in hand

AgiEndy cosh

CREDITORS: amounts falling
due within one year

MET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

CREINTORS: amounts falling due
after more than one year
Fension scheme liabiities

Other creditors

NET ASSETS

FUNDS

Endewment funds
Restricted income funds
Unrestricted Income funds:
Designated funds

TOTAL FUNDS

16
17

18

18

12

1,028
5,649
1582
3,925

12,184

(5.509)

157,502
36,224

193,726

6,675

200,403

(2.136)

158,265

130,671
16,579

50,221

198,265

|

2021
RESTATED
£'000 £°000
157, 3R6
20,485
197 872
1,034
1114
2,759
3673
14,580
{&,002)
8,577
206,449
i2,364)
204,085
130,725
20,192
51114
954
04,085
——

The Motes [pages 30 to 59} form part of these financial statements. The financlal statements were approved by
the Bpard of Trustees and aulthorised for issue on 25 May 2023 and signed on behall of the Board by:

+rx(Lﬂ-ﬂ~4 el

THE BNCHT BFEUTT MECOE AT BA IMET




LEEDS DIOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 Decembar 20232

Met cash from operating activities

Cagh flows from investing activities
Dividends, interest and rent from investments
Interest paid
Proceeds from the sale of:-
Tamgible fixced sasets
Fioed asset investments
Purchase of:-
Tangible fiwed assets for the use of the LDBF
Fixed asset investments

Met eath providied by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Loans repaid to LDBF

WL répaid due to property disposal
Permanent loans repaid

Ket cagh used in financing activities
Change In cash and cash equivalents in the
reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 lanuary

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

1,183
(&2)

2,341

{1.927)
(7o)

i3]
(169)
(101)

Reconciliation of net income before investment gains [ losses

Net expense before investment gains 31 December

Adjustments for

Depreciation charges

Dividends, interest and rent from imestments
Interest paid

Loss on sale of fixed assets

Prafit on sale of Med assets

Pention deficil valuation movements
Decrease in debtors

Decréass in creditors

et cash used In operating activities

Analysis of cash and cash eguivalents
Cash in hand
Motice depasits (less than 3 months)

a4

£'000 £7000
{2.88)

007

411

{555}
(142]

1,781

(55)
{110}

(274)

[2.390)
13,547

11,156

(1622}

{1.193)

36
(766)
{236)

10
(218)

(3,898)

5,507
5,649

11,156

£'000
(2942}

4,558

1477
12,069

13,546

(452]

[1.077)
{7
242
(ra3)
(250}
19
(630

(2,942)

6,432
7,114

13,546

|




LEEDS DIGCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE

NOTES TG THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2022

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The LOBF |s a private company limited by gearantes and registered Charity (Mo, BE235%3) and incorporated in
England and Wales. 115 registered address s Church House, 17-19 York Place, Leeds, L51 ZEX. It is a Public
Benefit Entlty as defined by FR5102,

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, with the exception of
freehold properties, which are included at their fair value as determined under the applicable valuation
method as detailed in e), and fived asset investments, which are included at their market value at the balance
sheet date, The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended
Practice for Charities (SORP 2019), the Companies Act 2006 and applicable accounting standards (FRS102).

The Trustees have prepared the financial statements on 3 going concern basis. The Trustees have taken note
of the guidance issued by the Finangial Reporting Council on Going Concern Assessments in determining that
this is the appropriste basis of preparation of the financial statements and have considered & number of
factors. The legacy of the Covid-19 pandemic and the high inflation experienced in 2022 has created
a number of financial challenges that continue to be navigated. The Trustees are confident that the
Balance Sheet remains strong and is sufficient to absorb deficits that may arise over the near term.
A Cost Review was completed in early 2021, which provided a structure to balance the budget over
the longer term. Additionally, in autumn 2022 the Board agreed a higher level of restricted fund
transfers (Le. from the Pastoral Account, 5554 Fund and Stipends Capital Fund where spending
criteria is met] for up to five years to support the unrestricted position. Consequently, the Trustees
hawve & reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
fer the foreseeable future.

The principal accounting policies and estimation techniques &re as follows,

a) o
Al incoming resources, including gifts, donations and legacies are shown in the Statement of Financial
Activities (SOFA) when the Board ks legally entithed to them as income or capital respectively, ultimate
receipt s reasonably cerfain and the amount 1o be recognised can be guantified with reasonable
BCELFACY.
I} Parish Share income. Credit is only taken for parish share income which was received within the
time scabes lald down by the Board.

ii} Grants from the Church Commissioners towards stipends, housing and other items have been
inchuded in the Income for the year and the appropriate Expenditure s shown gross. Grants received
which are subject to pre-conditions for entitlement or use specified by the donor which have not
been met al the period end are included In creditors to be carried forward to the following year.

) Stipends fund Income. The Stipends Fund Capital account is governed by the Diocesan Stipends’ Fund
Beasure 1953, a5 amended, and the use of the incomo is restricted for clergy stipends. However,
the income is fully expended within the year of receipt and the legal restrictions, therefore, ang
satisfied. it is on this basis that the income and the (nonmally much larger] refated expenditure ane
bath included in the unrestricted column of the Statement of Financial Activities for the sake of
greater clarity and shmplicity in finandal reporting,

b] Expenditure
Expenditure 5 included on the accruals basis and has been classified under headings that aggregate all
costs related 1o the Statement of Financial Activity category.
i} Costs of ralsing funds are constrained to costs relating 10 the Wemporary renting out of parsonages
and Investment management costs of glebe and any other investment properties.

il Charitable expendiure & analysed between contributions to the archblshops” Councll, expenditune

[T T =TSN IE Tl ikl ddisiRi w0 * Wi i p—l |.C|i Wa |-li IR WdAEat, CARFTIMuUTT | T:ﬂ I."I“. LL" l-“l. A ARIELIE .Y
of the digcesan retreat centre, and expenditure on education and Church of England schools in the
Digcese,




LEEDE MNOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE

MWOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)

iii} Grants payable are charged in the year when the offer ks conveyed to the recipient except in those
cases where the offer [s conditional an the recipient satisfying performance or other discretionary
reguirgmaents to the satisfaction of the LDBF, such grants being recognised as expendilufe when the
conditions attaching are fulfilled. Grants offered subject to such conditions which have not been met
at the year-end are noted as a commitment, but nol sccrued as expenditure,

v} Support costs consist of central management, administration and gowernance costs. The amount
spent on raigsing funds and other activities |s considered to be immaterial and all support costs are
allocated 1o the purpose of charitable activities. Costs are allocated wherever possible directly to the
activity to which they relate, but where such direct aPocation is not possible, the remainder is
allocated on an approsimate staff time basis.

v] Pension contributions, The LDBF's staff are members of the Church Werkers Pension Fund and Clergy
are members of the Church of England Funded Pensions Scheme (see note 28], The pension costs
charged as respurces cxpended represent the LDBEF's contributions payable in respect of the
sccounting pefiod, in accordance with FR510Z, Deficit funding for the pension schemes to which
LDBF participates is sccrued at present valug in creditors distinguished between contributions falling
due within ane year and after more than one year.

£] Tangible fixed assets and deprecistion
Capitalisation of property expenditure
Property expenditure is only capitalised on the purchase of a property, or if the expenditure is for the
structural or other enhancement of 3 property. Repairs expenditure is generally not capitalised.

Aszpts held for sole

Froperibes which are sold subject to contract are included within the tangible flxed asset category to
which they relate. This represents a change In accounting policy in the year and 3 such the peior year
has been restated.

Freehoid praperties

Depreclation ks not provided on buildings 25 any provision [annual or cumulative] would not be material
due to the very long expected remaining useful economic life in each case, and because thelr expecied
resldual wvalue is not materially bess than their earrying value. The LDBF has a policy of regular structural
ingpection, repair and maintenance, which In the case of residential properties is i sccordance with the
Repakr of Benefices Bulldings Measure 1972 and properties are therefore unlikely to deterborate or suffer
from obsolescence. In addition, disposals of properties ocour well before the end of their economic lives
and disposal proceeds are wsually not less than thelr carrving value. The Trustees perform annual
impairment reviews in saccordance with the requirements of FRS102 to ensure that the carrying value is
not more than the recoverable amount. Freehold properties are revalued on a free-year cycle.

Properties subject o volue Frked loans
Properties which have been bought with the assistance of wvaluedinked loans from the Church
Commissioners are révilued on a free-year oycle, with the corresponding liabilities being adjusted
accordingly.

Investment praperties
Glebe properties which are held for investment purposes and rented owt have been indleded at their fair

watue,

Parsonpge hoduses

The LDBF has followed the requirements of FRS10Z, in its accounting treatment for benefice houses
(parsonages). FRE102 requires the accounting ireatment to follow the substance of arrangements rather
fhan their stricl leeal fnrm The 1NEF & fnrmallv recasndilsle Tor thise maintensnce sod refair Af Girk
propertics and has some jurisdiction over thelr future use or potential sale if not reguired as a benefice
house, but in the meantime legal title and the right to benefickal cotupation ks vested In the Incumbent.
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LEEDS DICCESAN BOMARD OF FINANCE

NOTES TO THE FINANCLAL STATEMENTS lmﬂ'lhueﬂ]
For the vear ended 31 December 2022

1,

ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued]

The Trustees thenefore congider the mest suitable accounting policy is to capitalise such properties as
expendable endowment assets and to carry them at their estimated current marketl value. Parsonage
houses are revalued on a five-year cyche.

Schools
The school property is shown at cost. Depreciation is provided on the bullding over a S0-year period
{£6,000 pal the expected useful economic life of the asset.

Other tangible fixed assets

Other capital expenditure over £25,000 is capitalised and depreciated as folbows. Depeeciation is provided
in order to write off the cost [less any ultimate disposal proceeds at prices ruling at the time of the asset’s
soguisition] of other fixed a3sets over their curréntly expected useful economic ives at the following
initial rates:

Ofice fixtures & fittings 10% straight line
Office equipment 33% straight line
Computer equipment 3% stralght line

Other tanglbée Mxed assets additions less than £25,000 are depreciated in full during the year of purchase,

Key judgements
The preparaticn of the financial statements reguires management 1o make judgerments, estimates and

assurnptions that affect the amounts reported for assets and liabilitles as at the balance sheet date and
the amaunts reported for revenues and expenses during the year, However, the nature of estimation
means that actusl outcomes coubd differ from those estimates. The following judgements (apan from
thase involving estimates) have had the most significant effect on amounts recognised In the finangial
staterments:

= Land & Buildings are deemed to have unlimited wseful lives. All other tangible fived assets are
considered 1o have three-year useful economic ves.

= Land and Bulldings are not depreciated because of the high residual value based on current prices
and any depreciation charge and the accurmulated depreciation are regarded as not material, These
assets are considered to have a long unexpired Bfe due te a policy and practice of regular struciural
maintenanoe and a policy and practice of dispesing of simllar properties well before the end of thair
uzeful life.

& The assumptions underiying the valieation of the pension schime Babilities are set out in note 27,

Cthiér accounting policies
i] Fiked asset investments are included in the balance sheet a1 market value and the gain or loss taken

to the Statement of Financial Activities,

i} Leases. The LDBF has entered only into operating lease arrangements for the use of certain assets,
the rental for which i charged in full as expenditure in the year te which it relates. Where rent free
pefiods are given as parl of an operating lease, the Impeact of this rent free period B amortised aver
the whole perigd of the lease

32




LEEDS DIDCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

1.

ACCOUNTING POUICIES [continued)

g Fund balances
Fund Balances are split between unresiricted (geneval and designated), restricted and endowment funds.

il

H)

iif]

v

Unrestricted funds are the LDBF'S corporate funds and are freely available for any purpose within the

charitable company’s objects, at the discretion of the LDBF. There are two types of unrestricted

funds:

+  General funds which the LDBF intends to use for the genéral purposes of the LDBF; and

® Designated funds set aside out of unrestricted funds by the LDBF for a purpose specified by the
Trustess

Restricted funds are income funds sublect to conditions impased by the doner as specific terms of
trust, o else by legal measure,

Encowment funds are those held on trust to be retained for the benefit of the chariable COrmpany
85 & capital fund. In the case of the endowrnent funds administered by the LDBF [Parsonage Houges
and Schools), there are discretionary powers to convert capital into income and, a5 & result, these
funds are classified as expendable endowment. Endowment funds where there is no proedsion for
expenditure of capital are classified as permanent endowment,

“Special trusts” (as defined by the Charities Act 2011) and any other trusts where the company acts
& trusted and controls the management and use of the funds, are included in the COMPANY'S own
financial statements as charity branches. Trusts where the LDBF acts merely a4 custodian trustes
with na contral over the management of the funds are not included in the financial statements but
are summarized in the notes to the finandal staterments.

2, DOMATIOMNS

The majority of donations are collected from the parishes of the Diocese through the parish share system.

Parish contributions
Unrestricted funds Restricted  Endowmeont Total Ttal
Tunds funds
Ganeral Designated Funds Funds 2022 2031
[ ] L0 E'QDO £'DO0 E'D00 000
Apportichment 15,464 - - - 15 864 15474
Shortfall in receipts f2.382] . . (3.382) {2.877)
12,082 - e . 12,082 11,597
Freviousd years shars 1 . - - 181 17
valuntary shase 166 3 166 175
Tatal Incoms 13414 . . - 12,479 11,989
—— —

Currgnd year parish share receipts represent 78.1% of the total apportioned (2021 = 74.9%), or, when olher
voluniary contributions and receipts for previous years are Included, 80.4% of the tatal apporticned (2021 -
77.5%). 2021 comparatives are for the general fund only.
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LEEDS DIDCESAN BOARD OF FINAMCE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Far the year ended 31 December 2023

1. DONATIONS [continued)

Archbishops’ Councll
Unrestricted funds Restricted  [ndowment Total fumds

General Designated Fursds Furidy 033
2033 £'000 E£000 £'000 £'00 £°000
Transition  Funding  and 2,970 - a - 2970
Lowast Inpome
BAinistry Hardship Fund - . i1 . 126
Energy Crisls Support - . 3 - A
MAES Grant . - iE = 18
RME Grang - - 433 - 433
S0F Grant - - 578 - 538
SWAF Granit . - 242 = 207
Total inpoma 2,970 2 2,120 - 5,080

Unrestricted funds Restricted  Endewment Tofal funds

General  Designated Funds Funds 2031
2021 000 E'000 E'000 000 £'000
Transition Funding and 3,124 -] = i 5,124
Lowest Fncorme
Sustalnability Grant 50 . - . 4950
BMSE Grart - . 439 - 420
SOF Grang - . o074 . 874
SMF Grant - - 133 - 155
Tortal Ind oo a0 - 1,543 - 5,616

—_— — f— ——— |

The Lowest Income Communities Grant and The Transition Funding are annual grants for the parish mission fund,
which may be used either for specific parish mission and development projects or for clergy stipends. The
Sustainability Grant was provided by the Archbishops® Council in respanse to the Covid-19 pandemic. The RME
{"Resoureing Ministerial Education’) Grant is the funds provided by the Archbishops Council for the training of
ordinands. The S0F [‘Strategic Development Funding’) Grant is funding aliccated by the Aschbishops’ Council
strategic Development Unit towards specific strategic projects. in 2022 SOF grants were received principally in
relation to developing Resourcing Churches in Leeds and Bradford and the Déocesan Intern Scheme. The SMF
['Strategic Ministry Funding'] was granted by the Archbishops’ Council and provides financial support for growth
in the number of dergy by lunding curates. The MES grant ('Ministry Experience Scheme’) is provided by the
Archbishops’ Countil 1o help fund a scheme for those exploring ordination.

Other donatiens

Unrestricted fumds Restricted  Endowment Total

General  Designated Furids Funds Funds

2022 o] £'000 ] L7000 £'000
Al Churehes Trust Grant 268 n - - 268
Froperty Grants 10 s . - 10
Dthar Grams 13 - a6 - By
Legacies an - 21 - 1
rhher Darations 74 - . T4
3495 : a7 . a4z
—_— e — — ____— R —— ————
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LEEDE DICCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE

NWOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continusd)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Z. DONATIONS [continued]

Unrestricted funds Regtricted  Endowment Total
Genpral  Desipnated Funds Funds Fundi
2021 000 £'000 E£°000 L1000 EDOO
All Churches Trust Grang 1ES - . 284
Job Aegerition F.] - - TG
Pemperty Grants 11 K B 11
Dk Grands ap - 20 =0
Legacies - - 142 143
apz . 162 ® 564
T——
3, CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES
Unsrestricted funds Restricted Endowment  Total funds Total funds
General D signated Fund Funds FiiFF 2021
oo 000 £'000 L0000 £'000 E'DOD
Statetory fees 453 . Lk | 578
Legal & Professional TE - : - 18 [ ]
School Services 451 . - 451 183
Retrgat Costig 155 - s = 255 157
1L.737 = & - 1,7y 1,483
S T — —— T e — r———
2021 comparatives are for the general fund onby.
4, OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES
Wnrestricted funds Rostrigted  Endowment  Total funds
General Designated Funds Funds 023
023 E'D00 g ED00 000 i)
Hewsing inpame G54 * J 254
Outslde funding 36 : . LT
Tradning Incoeme 48 - - = &6
Miscelsnecus 119 . " . 119
1,155 = - - 1.18%
—— L -} T — T —
Unrestricted funds Reviricied  Endowment  Total funds
General Desiprated Funds Funds 203
2031 £7000 £"000 £°000 £°D00 000
HSuLsng eniame T4 B T4
Dutside Funding B , i i
Schiool ingome - E i
Training incame 48 . . &8
BAiscellaneous 123 - - 123




LEEDS DIOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
Far the year ended 31 December 20232

5 INVESTMENT INCOME

Unrestricted funds Bestricted  Endowment Tolal

Ganeral Designated Funds Funds Furnds

20ET E'000 E'DOD ] £7000 £'000
Dividands recevalle 613 = A56 L] 1,107
Interesl receiva ble F- - ! 3 B5
GAR A4 41 1,153

2021 000 E'DO0 £'000 000 £°000
Dividends recetvable 877 - 47 &5 1073
Interest recehvable 4 - - 4
B8l = 47 48 Lo7r

6. OTHER INCOMING RESOURCES

Urrestricted funds Restrcted Erdowrment Tatal fumds
General Designated Fiands Furds 023
2023 £'000 £°000 L7000 £'000 £000
Gain on sake of iraestments - . = 154 154
Gain on sale of properties ] - 49 1a3 572
EX ] - 54 337 766

Unrestricted funds Restricted  Endowment  Total fusds

General Designated Fumnis Furdi 321
2021 E'D00 £°000 e ] £'000 E"000
Gaén on sale of investrments - : 3 ¥
Gain an sale of properties A08 ] 234 152 Ta4
408 ] 34 152 Ta4
—_— —— L —-1 F—— -3 — e —
7. FUND RAISING COSTS
Unrestricted funds Restricted  Endowment  Totalfunds  Total funds
Goneral Desigratod Funids Funds il Faikd
£'000 000 L300 E°DDD D00 L0000
Maintenance of Glebe M . s . T £4
7 : - - 71 o4

dbd L comparatives are for the general fund only.
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LEEDE DIOCESAM BOARD OF FINAKCE

NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For theé year ended 31 December 3037

CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES

2022

Contributions to
Archbishops' Cowncil
Training for Mantstry
Mationsl Church
Resporaibilities
Mizsion agency pension
[4=11+]

Ratired clergy housing
Eosts

Pooling of ordinands
MEinensne Erants

Resourcing Mintstry and
Mision

Stipe ncds and naticnal
irsurance

Pension contributions
Housing costs
Removal, resettiernent
and grants

Othier expenses

Support for parish ministry
Reriresi Contre

Expenditure on Educstion
Church Schoals

Unirestricted funds Restricied Endewment  Totad funds
General Designated Funds Funie 022
£700 000 £'000 €000 £°000
454 . 459
Tag 344
16 - ] - 18
198 . 188
19 - 19
1076 - - - 1,076
5,012 402 - o414
2 468 s 116 - 2,584
4,245 158 &2 - #, 509
02 - - 0z
237 . = 237
16, 368 153 OO 17,126
3,653 - 1,388 K] 2,115
285 - . 295
20315 158 1,588 75 23,536
TS50 - 20 5 054
22,141 158 2,188 75 24 562
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LEEDS DICCESAK BOARD OF FIRARCE

MOTES TO THE FINANCLAL STATEMENTS (cantinued)
Far the year ended 31 December 2022

8. CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES [continued]
Unrestricted funds Restricted  Endowment  Total fumds

2071 Genaral Dasignatod Fisnds Funds &l
E'0oo €000 E000 £'000 £°000
Cortributions ta
Archbilshops® Councll
Training for Ministry 500 : ; : 500
Hatichal Church
Rezponsibilities a2 - . - 47
Missicn agency pension
oty 11 = . 2 77
Retired clergy housing
oot 1E4 - . 2 154
Pookag of crdinands
maintenance grants 154 . . . 154
1,253 . - - 1,252
Reseurcing Mindstry and
Mlsdlon
Stipends and national
indurance E.B15 ; 340 . 9,155
Pension contribution 1.522 - 78 - 2,600
Hieusing codts 31,374 - a5 . 3,408
Remarval, resetiberent
and grants 314 v = = 3i4
Dber expanies 200 . . : 206
15,225 . 453 - 15,678
Luppart for parish 3,746 q 1,142 12 4,509
ministry
Refreat Centre 212 - E . 12
15,183 8 1,585 12 K07
Expenditure on
[ducation
Church Scheols 61 . 58 = 789
21,126 -] 1653 12 22,840
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LEEDS DICCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2027

&, OTHER RESOURCES EXPENDED

Unrestricted funds Restricied  Endowment Tetal
2z Gemeral Designated Funds Funds Fungs
£'000 E000 (g ] 000 E°00D
Leds on Salp of Propenties 3z - ] 5 a7
£l E 5 ar
e —— 1 —
Unrestricted funds Restricted  Endowment Tatal
w0 General Designated Funds Fundy Funds
000 £°000 £'000 05D £'000
Lovss an Sake of Propertees 1 - - 2 243
In - s EF] 43
10. ANALYSIS OF EXPENDITURE INCLUDING ALLOCATION OF SUPPORT COSTS
Activities Grant
Undertaken  Funding of Support Toitxl
Diveeiby Activities Costs Costs
2033 (v ] L000 i) E'D0D
Raising Funds o 71
Chasitable actities:
Contributions to Archbishops® Councl - 1,076 . LOTE
Reseureing parigh minitey 19,568 1,608 1,065 12,341
Clergy pension deficit valuation {225} - . {225}
Eduation B . ITn 450
Reetreat Centre 29% . - 205
Lay pension defios valuation 1] - - [11)
Qther 0 - - E)
20,415 684 1,335 24,834
2021 000 E'GD0 il E'poD
Hlm""ﬂdl L4 " " 54
Charitable activitios:
Cortributions (o Archbisthops' Council - 1252 - 1,252
Resourting parish mingstiy 18,887 545 1,060 20,587
Clergy pensson deficil valustion 14 - - 14
Education [0 . 150 78BS
Retreatl Centre 212 - = 213
Lay perdion defickt vabistion [#64] = {254)
Okseer 243 E 42
19,778 1897 1,210 23 886




LEEDS DIOCESAN BOARD OF FINAMCE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
Far the year ended 31 December 20032

11.

i

ANALYSIS OF SUPPORT COSTS
Unresiricted funds Restricted Endowrment Toasl Total
furds Tunds
General Desigrated Funds Furds 012 2021
£°000 £'000 DDy 000 £°000 EDOD
Ceriral
administration . : : = e ™
Suppart for
Schools I . - 270 150
GOvernance:
External aiadit 8 - - -] 30
Registrar and
Chancallos 243 - 243 41
Symodical cosis B - B 15
1,335 : . - 1,335 1210
== =3 e e —
2021 comparatives are for the general fund only,
ANALYSES OF GRANTS MADE
T0X32 Mo,  Individuals Irestibuthong Tatal
L0D0 £'000 EQOD
From wnrestricied funds for
natianal Chairch responsibilities
Contributions te Archbishops’ 12 1,076 1,076
Counil
From unrestricted funds:
Ecumenical) Chusches Topother i . ] L]
Deganisations
Chergy Training 803 £ . [
Clergy Granis (Remosal, First 191 303 - 3
Bppoirtment, resettlement]
Ordinaticn k| ar - a7
Voration grants o 110 - 110
bitsion Grants a3 - EL] k]
1367 516 45 561
From restricted funds for
VFiouS purposes within
resourcing parish minlstry:
PLL Budhding Grants L [ BB&
POC Energy Grants 265 75 T15
Edwcation 3 - 140 180
Clergy 165 118 - 118
477 118 821 1,039
From endowmaent funds for
various purposes within
respurcing parish ministry:
FCC Buiding Grants 10 B B
o s b el
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LEEDS MOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

12,

ANALYSIS OF GRANTS MADE [continued)

From wnresiricted funds for
national Church responsibilithes
Contributions 19 Anchbishops”
Council

Fram wunrestricted funds:

Ecwmenicalf Churches Together
BREB ARG

Clergy Training

Chergy Grants (Removal, First
Appedntmen, resettlement]
Cardination

Vacation grants

Misshon Grants

From endowment funds for
waricus purpases within
resowrcing parish minigtry:
wWidows gnd dependamts of
clergy

41

1

754
25

434
51

1,458

26

14

g

5L

3%

158

i

sl

Institutions Total
£'000 £000
1,252 1,252

[ [

43

. 315

-]

E 158

29 a4
a0 574
o]

- 19

EF Wl
1,334 1,897
m—mar E———



LEEDS DIQCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE

MWOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

13. STAFF COSTS

Employee costs during the year were as fellows:
Wapges and salaries

Mational insurance contribufions

Pensian contributions

Sub-tatal
Pension deficit valuation movements

Total Staff Costs

The average number of persons employed by the LDBF during 2022 were:

Supgport for Ministry
Education
Retreat House

The average nurmber of persons employed by the
LDBF during the year based on full-time equivalents:

Support for Ministry
Education
Retreal Houwse

022 2021
£000 £000
2,506 2,840
288 270
2548 226
3,453 3,336
(11) {264}
3442 3,0%2
2022 2021
MNumber Mumber
T6 T4
11 11
11 11
og 101
2027 2021
Number MNumber
63 63
11 11
[} B

8O ED
-_— ——

The numbers of stafl whose emoluments {including benefits In kind and redundancy payments bul
excluding Pension contributions) amounted to mose than £60,000 were a3 follows:

E60,001 - £70,000
£70,001 - EED,000
ER0,001 - £590,000
£90,001 - EX0, 000

Pension paymaents of £34,000 were made for these 4 employees (2021 4 employees £34,000),

a3

2022
Number
)

1

a

1

2021
Mumber

L=




LEEDS DdOLESAN BDARD OF FINANECE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]
For the year ended 31 December 2022

1%,

STAFF COSTS [contimued)
Remuneration of key mansgement personnel

Koy management personnel sre deemed to be those having authority and responsibility, defegated to them
by the trustees, for planning, directing and controlling the sctivities of the Diccese. Duerimg 2021 thiry were;

Diocesan Secretary Jonathan Wood
Chief Finance Officer Geafl Park
Director of Ministry & Mission The Revd Canon Andrew Nosman
Director of Education Canon Richard Noalke
Director of Strategy implementation John Enox
& Head of Property
Director of People and Engagement Anna Mitchell
Director of Church Revitalisation The Rewd Jude Smith
Director of Communications Chris Tate

Remuneration, pensions and expenses for these 8 employees amounted to £567,000 (2021: & employees
£548,000].

Trustees' emoluments

No Trustee received any remuneration for sendces a5 Trustee. The Trusiees recenved travelling and out of
pocket expenses, totalling ENil (2021 - ENII) in respect of Trustee duties.

The following table gives details of the Trustees who were in receipt of a stipend and/or housing proveded
by the LDBF during the year:

Stipend Housing
The Right Revd Anthony Robinson Ho s
The Right Revd Helen-Ann Hartley Mo Tied
The Right Revd Paul Stater Ko Yes
The Right Rewd Taly Howarth Ko Vs
The Right Revd Jonathan Gibbs o Yes
The Right Revd Arun Arora Ha Y
Thie Rewd Migel Wiright Y5 Yes
Rewd Canen Kathrgn Fitzsimons Yes Vs
The Ven Paul Ayers Yes Yis
Thit Rewd Rachel Firth Yas L
The Rewd Eve Ridgeway Yied Yes

Ko other trustees appointed during the year received a stipend or housing.

The LDBF is responsible for funding via the Church Commissioners the stipends of kcensed stipendiary chergy
in the Diecese, other than bishops and cathedral s1aff. The LOBF is also responsible for the provision of
housing for stipendiary clergy In the Diocese including the Area Bishops but excluding the Diocesan Blshop
and cathedral staff.
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LEFDS CIOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |continwed)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

13.  STAFF COSTS [continued)

The LDEF pald an average of 324 (2021 - 320} stipendiary clergy as office-holders holding parochial or
discesan appaintments in the ocese, and the oosts were as follaws:

2022 2021

£000 oD
Stipends 8,259 &, 106
Apprentice Levy L] g
Mational insurance eontributions 713 &7l
Pension contributions 2693 2,509
Sub-total 11,704 11,324
Pension deficit valuation movements [225] 14
Total 11,479 11,338

Stipends include £70,000 redundancy payments paid 1o 1 chergy (2021 = £NIT).

The stipends of the five Bishags were paid and funded by the Church Commissioners. The stipends of the
Diocesan Bishop and Area Bishops are funded by the Church Commissioners and are in the range £38,050
- E4B BE0 [2021; £37,670 - £46,1B0), The annual rate of stipend, funded by the LDEF, paid to Archdeacons
In 2022 was E37,567 [2021: £36,830) and other dergy who were Trustees were paid in the range £25,770 -
E£27 536 (2021: £25,065 = £27 388).

14.  AMALYSIS OF TRANSFERS BETWEEM FUNDS
Unrestricted funds Restricted  Endowment

General  Deslgnated Funds Furnids
£000 £7004 £'000 £obd
From General fund to Stipends endowment for
reducticn of pension deficit {335) = . 338
Transfer of Pension funds to General Funds 1o support
dlergy pension deficit payments 54 . - (58)
Transfer of Pastoral funds to General Funds (o suppont
MEP activities and clergy pension deficit payments 455 . [455) A
Transfer of 5554 funds to General Funds 1o support
Board of Education expenditure 250 - [250)
Transfer of Inglefield funds to General Funds to support
Lay and Clergy education 65 - {65) .
Transher of Training for Minlstry funds to General Funds
i support ordinands’ training. 30 - (20} =
Transfer of housing assets following Pastoral Scheme 310 - . (210
Transfer of Parsonage Houses from DBFPastoral
Account to Benefice Housing [245) . {2,780) 3,025
Transfer of housing fellowing purchase of replacement
Parsonage property . . B85 [E95)
Transfer of Parsonage sale proceeds to Pastoral
Account for purchase of replacerment Parsonage . . 497 [497)
Transfer of historke church budldings regair lund income . - az {32)
588 - {2.356) 1,768
C— —— —_— f— g

During 2022, £0.3m of gencral funds were vsed Lo pay the clengy pension scheme deficits. Transfers from
Pension and Pastoral funds funded these payments. Other translers lrom restricted fo enresricted funds
o E0.5m were undertaken 1o support education wark, erdinands’ training, missions and pastosal activities.
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LEEDS MOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

14,

ANALYSIS OF TRANSFERS BETWEEN FUNDS (continued)

Trarster of a house with a book value of £0.3m from benefice funds to unrestricted funds took place on the
completien of Pastoral Schemes. And, £0.2m, £2 8m and £4.2m was transferred from unrestricted funds,
the Pastoral Account and Stipends Fund Capital respectively to benefice funds to reflect the correct
allocation of parsonage houses. Following the purchase of & replacement parsonage the existing property
was transferred from benefice funds to the Pastoral account pending sabe (£0,7m] and following the sale of
another parsonage property funds of E0.5m were also transferred to the Pastoral Account pending a
pastoral scheme.

Within endowment funds (and therefore not visible above) £0.5m was transferred from ghebe land to the
stipends fund capital being the proceeds on sale of these assets, and £0.5m from the stipends fund capital
1o benefice housing on the purchase of & new parsonage property.

15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
2022 wnon
£'D00 £'000
Financlal assets measured at fair value 31,672 B5,E70
Finandlal assets measured at amortised cost 1,028 1,084
— 1
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cos 5732 B,2EG
Financial liabllithes measurad at fair value 1,513 2,081
Financial assets measured at falr value cormprise unlisted Investrments.
Financial assets measured at amortised cost compeise trade debtors, other debtors, value linked loans and
other loans 1o parishes and schools and other réceivables.
Financial liabilities measured at fair value comprise Church Commissioners” value Bnked loans,
Financial liabilities measured at amertised cost comprise pension scheme liabilities, other ereditors and
amounts held for other bodies and Church Commissioners” other loans.
1E, TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
RESTATED Freehald Office Fixtwres & Bemeflee  Pastoral School Glebe
properties eguipmeni Fittimgs  properties Furd Mousz properties Tl
Cost or valuation £'000 £'000 £'D00 E'DDD {115 1] E°000 000 E000
AL 1 January BOZE 48,433 b | . 5260 - 208 16,040 1583281
Addits H3E & 19 Lﬂm - - - :I,E..'f?
Disposals [1,450) . - {355) . . . {1,805
Reckassified in period 65 . - {7ea) E35 . : -
&5 31 December 2022 47,886 821 149 92,634 (=11 208 16,080 158,403
Depreciation
AL Janisry 2022 - 821 - - - T - 4]
Charge for the yeas " . - - - & - &
At 31 December 2023 = 821 . - . RO . 4011
Met Book Value
At 31 Dwcember 2007 47 885 s 18 57,634 Bo4 18 16,M0 - 157,503

#A1 3] Degember 2023 al,432 r . 6715 . 234 16040 157 &R
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LEEDS DIOCESAMN BOARD OF FINAMCE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

17

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS [continued)
Al of the properties in the balance sheet are freehold and are vested in the LDEF, except for benefice
houses which are vested in the incumbent. Some properties have been purchased with the help of
permanent andfor value-linked boan from the Church Commissioners; when dsposed of, the appropriate
share of the net sale proceeds will be remitted 1o the Commissioners, and the related loan liability
extinguished, The walue of such properties (included in the above) amounts to £6,285000 (2021
£6,640,000). Of the total land and bulldings at 31 December 2022, ENIL are valued at cost (2021: ENIL), but
all at valuation,
Properties are subject to a five-year cycle of survey and consequent revaluation, with the last market
valuation being as a1 317 December 2018 by David Chary BSc FRICS of Sanderson Weatherall,
In & change of accounting policy for 2022, no properties are now shown as Assets Held for Sale. The
comparative balsnce sheet has been restated with £990,000 of Assets Held for Sale now shown as Tangible
Fined Assets at 31 December 2021,
FIXED ASSETS INVESTMENTS
Al Changa in At 31
1 January Transfers Market Decembser
bl b b Additions Dispasais Walue Walue 02
E'DDO E000 (i £°000 £000 L0
Unrestricted furds
Wnlisted investments 6,104 70 (1o {3,3809 (317 2,447
Designated funds
Unlisted investments 13 . . i (] 14
Restricted funds
Uniisted invastments 11,508 . . 3,398 1,755) 13,147
Endowment funds
mvastmant propety 4 E16 - (6] . : 4,552
Linfisted imvestments 18,242 - . (58] {2,120 16,064
22,858 - [54) [58) iz.1200 20,616
Total &0, 486 m 134} - [4,128) 36,104
DEBTORS
20232 2021
£000 £'000
Due within ane year
Loans to pariches 12 8
Other debtors and prepayments 9F7 9EE
Q&5 995
Due after more than one year
Laans to parishes ] 39
39 39
Tolal debtors 1,028 1,034
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LEEDS DICGCESAN BOARD OF FINAMCE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

15,

CREDITORS: amount falling due within one year

2032 2021
£'000 £'000
Loan repayment instalmants due In one year
Church Commissioners valuedinked loans 128 169
Church Comrmissioners other loans i) 1m
Other taxes and social security 73 M
Other creditors and accruals 5,208 4,933
Pension scheme liabilities:
Lay Defmed Benelit Scherme - 169
Clergy Pension Scheme 560
Total creditors: amounts falling due within one year 5,509 B,003
[ —— ] —
CREDITORS: amount falling due after more than one year
2022 2021
£'000 £000
Loan repayment instalments due after more than one year
Church Commissioners value-linked lpans 1,785 1912
Chureh Commissioners other laans 351 452
Penzion scheme labdlities;
Lay Defined Benefit Scheme - -
Clergy Pension Scheme = =
Total creditors: amounts faling due after more than one year 2,136 2,364
_ ——
The matwrity of the above koans may be analysed as follows:
Between one and two years 100 100
Betwiin two and five years 237 294
In five years or more 1,786 1965
2,136 2,364

Church Commissioners other koans consist of permanent loans in collection which are martgage lpans for the
purchase of clergy houses; the amount falling due after more than one year all relates to the General Fund.
These loans are repayable over terms ranging from 5 1o 25 years in quarterly instalments, with the final loan
repayable in 2028, The loans bear interest rates between £,1% and B.5%, which is borne by the LDBF. In the
event of sale, the loan weuld be settled out of the proceeds and there would be no further charge 1o the
LDBF,

Value-linked loans (VLLs] are funds advanced to the LDBF for the purchase of properties on an equity sharing
basis and are repayable on the dispesal of the related property. The loans are held at falr value based on the
latesn viduations of the linked properties, with valuations aking place every 5 YEATE




LEEDS DMOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued]
For the year ended 31 December 2022

1.

SUMMARY OF FUND MOVEMENTS

Fiekr)

UNRESTRICTED FUNDS
General

DESIGHATED FUNDS
Archdeacons Discreticnary
ingrow Fund

Mdeesion Furd

Carbon Reduction Fund

RESTRICTED FLINDS

Sertion 554 Education

Clergy & Dependants hardship funds
Bradiord Surnmer Camps

Local Educational Funsds

Retreat House support funds
Local Parochial purposas

Appeals & specific purposes
Chergy & loy stipend sugmentation
Church building repalr funds
Pastoral Acceurt

Mlarsging Trustees funds
Inglefield funds

Training for ministry funds
Sarategic Development Funds
Strategic Ministry Funds

Parish Energy Support Grams

ENDOWMENT FUNDS

Permanent

Stipends fund capital

Expendable

Genersl purposes & sdministration
suppart funds

Maimtenance ol Binistny

Persions

Tradning fed ministry funds

Clergy & dependants hardship funds
Lecal Pasachial purpased

Glebe Land

Church bulding repair fursds

Glebe Froperties

Benefice Properies

Local Educaton Funds

Religiows Education suppor,
Appeal funds & specific purposes

Balances at Ealances at
1 January Gains and 31 Becember
2023 IRpeame [apenditure  Trarsfers Losses 2022
£"000 £'000 ED00 (g1 000 000
52,214 15, 44 (22, 008) 588 (317] S0z
i3 i2h 11
20 . 0
B2l . - - &l
300 - [15E) E 142
54 - {158) B @ T34
T 4085 205 [Fabl] 1250} [*51) £.503
26 143 {111 - 18 114
: | E - - - 1
L i " - 12 a7
3 6 - - - 57
13 1 . H = 14
&5 E [1 . T
14z 21 . : . 153
401 13 a2 [%a) 355
5,053 233 i2,043] {670} 6,61%
51 - - . £1
1784 44 . 1651 (165} 1,597
£56 47d {335] (3 (11F) E53
B2 L 1528] - - B3
d ELE (293) . - Ey
- T34 {715) - . ]
20,192 2680 (2.188) [2.356) 11,759) 16,579
19,760 2 ] ] 14,506] {1721} 13,349
Fi T - - 12
1,290 - - - (143} i1
B6 - . 58] 12 .
114 E| . - - 117
1332 7 ® (117 1247
a2 . - [EL] Sad
1,616 104 - (258) - 4557
704 9 [75) 32) (43) 563
16,04l . - . b 16, 0a0
5,670 143 . E812 - 93,634
i11 - n . [13) 9B
b - {21) 155
43 - = 43
130,735 37E |80} 1,768 [2,130) 130,671
204,085 11,512 {24 434) [4,15&] 148, 265
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LEEDS DIOCESAN BOARD OF FINAMCE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

21, SUMMARY OF FUND MOVEMENTS |continued)

Fiird | Balances at Balances at
1 January Gairs and 31 Decembaer
n Inome  Expenditure  Translers Lesses 021
000 E000 £'000 i E'D00 £'000
UNRISTRICTED FUNDS
General 45,055 19,540 {21,100] 3,641 E74 52214
DESIGNATED FUNDE
furchdeacons Disoretionany 12 - (1} = 2 1%
Ingrew Fund 28 - 1&] = - 20
Mitssion Fund 621 " = - . 611
Carban Reduction Fund E 1 i) E b . - 300
861 3 @) z 554
RESTRICTED FUMDS
Section 554 Edutation E.EID 260 fag) {300) B0d 7499
Chergy & Dependants hardship funids 2] Il [17) e ] af
Bradiord Summer Camps i . - . 1
Locsl Educational Funds | F i k)
Rivtreat House suppon funds 31 - E5 |
Local Parochisl purposes 13 - . - - 13
Appeal & specific purposes 12 . i - . b5
Clergy & by stipend sugmentation . 142 . - . 142
Chureh building repalr funds 359 1 12} . 53 an
Pastoral Apoownt 6,285 262 . 1m 363 8,083
Mapraging Trustees funds 51 - - - ' 51
Inglefield funds 1,602 a0 - fac] 182 1784
Training for ministry funds 815 452 [4E5] (30 124 vl
atrabegic Development Funds i 574 19551 . . 83
Strateglc Ministry Funds - 133 139 - .
18,243 1,293 (1,653 1809 1540 0152
ENDOWRIENT FUNDS
Fermanent
Stipends fund capital 1€, 067 . - 1.E7H 1,824 18, 166
Expendable
General purposes & administration 12 - - . - nz
suppart funds
Maintenarce of Ministry 1,110 - 160 1270
FEnging 1040 2 - (500 14 &
Training for mindstry funds 111 3 - . . 114
Clergy & dependants hardship funds 1,158 26 f12] . 136 1,333
Lol Parochlal purposes 541 - - . 81 5&3
Glebe Land 4,797 - - (181} - £,514
Chirch building repair funds 634 Lo} - - 51 o
Glebe Propertics 17,277 . (72 (2,1685) ; 16,040
Benelice Froperiies 91,460 151 . {5,932] - 85,675
Religiows Education suppon 152 . - - E. IRE
Appeal furds & other specilic purpotes 43 . - . - &1
133,706 am [E4) 15.450) 2262 130, 7X5
S04, I055 22434 |4 BE5) v & 478 404,085
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LEEDS DICCESAN BOARD OF FIMAKNIE

WOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
Far the year ended 31 December 2022

21,  SUMMARY OF ASSETS BY FUMD

F.ird Fioed assats Cudnent fiet
Tangible Imvestments Agsets Creditess Aarely
£°000 000 =i L0000 000
Unrestricted funds - Gemeral 47905 2447 131 (3,460 20,21
Unrestricted - designated
Archdeagons Dacretionary - i4 - {3 11
ingraw Fund . . 0 - 0
Missdon Fund a - [ | - 621
Carbon Reduction Furd - - 142 - 142
14 TH3 £} T4
Restricted
Section 554 Educaltion 218 5,693 582 = 6,503
Clergy & Dependants hardship fisnds - ] &5 - 114
Bradfosd Summer Camps ] - 1 - 1
Local Edocational Funds - 12 5 - a
Retrest Houie suppart funds . - ar - a7
Local Parcchial punposes funds - - 14 - 14
Appeals & speciic punposes . - 37 (257 o
Clargy & lay stipend sugmentaton - . 163 . 163
Church building repailr funds - T 25 - EL ]
Pagtoral Accnunt =1 £04% B72 - 6613
Managing Trustees - - 51 . L} |
inghefield funds - 1,248 328 . 1597
Training for ministry hends - T 163 : B9%
Serategic Development Funds - B B3 B2
Farish Enargy Support Grars - . ] . g
Schopls LOVAPR Building Programme . . 3,925 [3,925) -
923 13,147 6,691 [4.182) 16,573
Endawmant
Permanent
Stipends fund capital - 12,563 k- - 13,348
Expendable
Benafice hosses 92,634 - . - 8,634
Gemeral Purpodes B - 242 - 213
Mgintenance of Ministry - 1,130 1 - 1121
Glebe Property 16,0ty - - - 16,040
Pensions . . - . .
Trawing fos Ministry . 117 . . 117
Clergy & Dependants hardship funds - &5 353 - 1243
Local Educationa Funds - 98 - - 1)
Local Parochial purposes funds - I5E 188 . ELL
Glebe Land . 4,552 . - 4,552
Church building regair funds - 363 J00 - R ]
Religious Educatian support funds - 156 . 155
Appeal fumds B other specilic . 2 &1 - 43
pufpoies
10B.67 ,E16 1,381 * 130,671
Todel funels 157,102 25,374 12,184 |7 64%5) 190,265
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LEEDS DPOCESAN BOARD OF FINAMNCE

MNOTES TO THE FINARCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

22, SUMMARY OF ASSETS BY FUMD [continued)

2021 RESTATED Fined Assats Carrent Mt
Tangible lmvasiFnients ARiats Creditors Ayiats
£'000 E'000 E'Do0 E'DDO 7000
Unerestricted Fands - General &g 833 5,304 1,453 (3816} $1.314
Unresfricted - designated
Archdescons Discretignary - 16 L 3] 13
i Fund - - m - 20
Migiicen Fund L . 611 - 621
Carkson Reduction Fusd . - e ) : 300
- 16 4] 13y SE4
Eestrioed
Section 554 Edacation 184 [ZEES Bl . TEa
Clargy & Dependants hardihip . & L - B
furmds
Bradiced Summer Camps = . 1 - i
Lical Educatinnal Fundi : 13 23 - £
Retreat Houss support funds - - b} = n
Lizgad Pargehisl poafpesdis funds . . 14 - 14
Appeals & specilic purposes : . Iy [21£] ES
Clextiy & by stipend supmentation : - 147 - 142
Onurgh Building regair funds. . a21 -] 125] ank
Pastoral Account 2,781 2316 31.59% - 9,003
Banageg Truslesd . . 51 - 51
Irglefisid funds . 1415 369 - 1,784
Training bor micitry funds . 42 53 4 96
Stratepc Develogenpnt Funds 2 : B3 83
Schoods LOVAP Buikding Programene a - 3,673 13.673) -
3015 10,508 0645 th.9T6) 20,191
Endcssrnent
Permarsnt
Exipends fund capital 4.9 14,685 1434 555 19,769
[xpendable
Benelice hogtes BTG " L E B5,673
Genwral Purposes s - 11T - 12
Muaintensnie of Minitry . 1,268 z - L7
Glebe Froperty 16.040 - - - 16,040
Pardian - &5 = - 66
Training for Ministry - 114 - . 11s
Clergy & Dependants hardship funds - 007 338 {13 1,343
Lioral Edacaticenl Fundy - 111 - ] 111
Local Parochial purposes funds - 404 1R8 - 142
Glebe Land " 4 516 C - 4515
Chusrch bullding repair fursts - 408 206 . ol
Religicern Edusation supnor Tundy : 177 . £ 177
Appeal fungs B otrstr  ypacific - 2 a1 43
purpadss
105 538 22,858 35 5¥2) 130,735
Total funds 157 385 &0,486 18,550 (8367 204,085
E 3 - — -4 - 1§ j RS  ——
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |contlnued)
For the yesr ended 31 December 20323

23. DESCRIPTION OF FUNDS

Funds included in this
Fund category Furpose category
General fund The general fund is the LDBF'S unrestricted
undesignated fund avallable for any of the
LDEF's purposes withoul restriction.
Archdeacons Represents granis récebved 481 aside Lo be used
Discretionary Fund at the discretion of Archdeacons,
irgr o Fund Funds from the bequest of Nora Curry left for
the benefit of the parish of ingrow.
Mission Fund Funds 1o support future SOF projects and the
creation of a Parish Growth Fund,
Carbon Reduction Fund  Funds to enable adjustments to aur buildings
that reduce thitir carbon footpring
Section 554 Established under SBE6 of the Education Act
1993, Capital monbes to develop or build few
or existing woluntary aided schools or maintain
such schools or contribute to educational
purpose:.
Clergy and dependents  Funds to provide relief of chengy and their Clergy Stipend Trust, Clergy
hardship funds dependents in financial hardship, Widows and Dependents,
Quesn Vicloela Trust, Leads
Discise Charitable Society
Trust, Ald to Parish Clergy,
Widows, Clergy Retirement,
Education Grants
Bradford Summer Funds 1o provide support to children & youths
Camps Bursary to enable them to attend summer camps in
cases of financial hardship.

Local educational funds  For educational purposes in the areas named  Shipley cum Heaten District
CofE School Trust, Keighleoy 5t
Peter Educational Trust

Retreat House support  Support towands the Diocesan Retrest House  Friends of Parcevall Hall,

funds Pareevall Hall Burssny

Local Parochial For general parochial purposes in the area Harth Wing Mizsion, Gulseley

purpases funds named. Carleton, Keighley All Saints
Mchith

Appeals and ipecial Funds comprise donations recetved for specific  mterfaith fund, Youth

purposes funds appeals and purposes, intleding work in Links  Evangelism, Special Appeals,
Dépceses, Marthern Sudan, Kadugli
Appeal, Church in the Warld,
hartin in the Fiekd,

Druker {deal menistng)




LEEDS MMOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the yesr ended 11 December 2023

23. DESCRIPTION OF FUNDS [continued)

Fund category

Church bullding repadr
Tinds

Strategic Development
Funids

Strategic Minkstry
Funds

Clergy & lay stipend
augmdntation

Pastoral Acoount

Inglefield

Traindng for ministry
General purposes and
administration

Maintenanes of
miniskry

PEnsion
Funds te provide
church bullding repalr

loans

Stipends Fund Capital

Purpoise Funds included In this
category

For repairs 19 churches of the Evangelical The First Lord Grimethorpe

tradition in the Church of England within the Charity, Church buslding

Diocess, fund, Harregate Churches,
Church Ballding Repair, Davy
bequest

Funds major change projects which lead 1o a
significant difference in dicceses’ mission and

financial strength.

Provides financial support for growth in the
number of clergy by funding curates

Funds for the augmentation of chergy and lay
stipends

This fund includes the proceeds of buildings
closed for regular public worship, parsonages
and land sales, The purpose for which this
aocownt may be used are lald down in Section
4 of the Pastoral Measure 2011,

Created from safe of Diocesan Retreat Howse at
Barrowby, and assets transferred from the
Booker Beguedt, Income used to ald Discesan
Synod, conferences and theslogical courses,

Income used towards cost of training Resourcing Ministerial
ardinands. Education (RME)

Funds from beguests to be used to support
administration and general purposes

Funds from bequests to be used to suppornt
stipends in speciic parishes

Funds from beguests to be used in supporting
clargy pensions,

Funds 15 support the provision of loans to assist
major works te be carfied out on church
buildings. Loan fund, Kiddle Beguest

The income of the fund can anly be used for
clergy stipends [(but since 1953 capital can be
used far improverments to parsonage houses)
and is governed by the Diocesan Stipends
Meagure 15953,
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WOTES TO THE FIRARCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
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23, DESCRIFTION OF FUNDS (continued)

Fund category Purpase Funds inchuded In this
category
Glebe Land This fund is governed by the Endowments and Glebe
Measure 1976; It represents the value of agricultural or
commercial land in the Diocese, primarily held to
generate sustainable income to support clengy stipends,

Benefice Properties This represents the value of all benefice housing
[parsonages) in the Discese after deducting amy boans

dut on the properties.
Funds for support of income used to support schools work, and to meet the  Schools fund, Religious
religlous education office and travel costs of religious education advisers.  education advisor

EX[ENSES SUpPOnt

24, CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

15,

A1 31 Decemnber 2022 the LDBF had capital expenditure commitments of £274k (2021 - £104k) which are
contracted for but not provided lor in these financial statements.,

OPERATIMNG LEASES

Total amounts payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows;
2022 201
£'D00 £'000

Land and bulldings

‘Within one year of the balance sheet date 24

In the second to fifth year of the balance sheet date 85

After the fifth year of the balance sheet date 46
s _—

24
a5
64

FOST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There were no post balance sheet events or contingent liabilities at the Balance Sheet date.

PENSIOMNS

Dwring 2021 the LDBF participated in two pension schemes administéreéd by the Chaurch of England Pensions
Beard, which holds the assets of the schemes separately from those of the LDBF and the other participating
employers. One of these ks the Church of England Funded Pensions Scheme for stipendiary clergy. The other
i% the Church Wiorkers Pendion Fund. The Church Workers Pension Fund has a section known as the Defined
Benefits Scheme, a deferred annuity section known as Penskon Builder Classie and & eazh balance section
known &5 Pension Builder 2014

Church of England Funded Penslon Scheme

With effect from 1 fanuary 1998, diocesan clergy became members of the Church of England Funded
Pensions Scheme. This defined benefit scheme provides benefits based on the Nationa! Minimum Stipend in
ihe year before their date of retirement and provides for that part of the benefit that relates to pensionabie
service after 1 January 1998, Benefits are currently being accrued on the basls of hall of the National
Minimurm Stipend (NM3) being paid a5 the normal pension on reaching the age of &8 on completion of
maximurn service of 41.5 years, or 1.25 times this amount for archdeacons, plus & lurmp sem of three Lmes
the pension based on the previous year's NMS payable fram the stheme. Pensions in respect of pensipnabile
MAVICE DEIOre L January 1998 will be provided for by the Church Commissioners under the previous
Brrangements.
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27, PENSIONS |continued)
Decembrer 2022 December 2021

Mumber of members 329 327

Leeds DBF participates in the Church of England Funded Pensions Scheme for stipendiary dergy, a defined
benefit scheme. This scheme Is administered by the Church of England Pensions Board, which holds the
assets of the schemes sepacately from those of the Respongible Badies.,

Each participating Responsible Body in the scheme pays contributions at 8 comman contribution rate applied
to pensionable stipends.

The scheme is considered to be a multi-emplayer scheme as described in Section 28 of FRS 102. This means
it is not possible 1o attribute the Scheme's assets and Habilities to each specific Responsible Body, and this
means contributions are accounted for as i the Scheme were a defined contribution scheme. The pensions

costs charged to the SoFA In the year are contributions payable towards benefits and expenses accrued in
that year, plus any impact of deficit contributions are shown in Note 13 {see also below).

A valuation of the Scheme is carried out once every three years. The most recent Scheme valuation
completed was carried out at a5 31 December 2021. The 2021 valuation revealed a surplus of E560m, based
on assets of £2,720m and & funding target of £2,160m, asseased using the following assumpticns:

* AR average discownt rate of 3.2% poa. ;

*  RAPlinflation of 3.6% p.a. (and pension increases consistent with this);

*  CPIH inflation in line with RPI less 0.8% pre 2030 moving to AP with no adjustment from 2030:
Increase in pensionable stipends in ling with CPIM; and
Mortality in accordance with 50% of the SINA tables, with allowance for improvements in mortality
rates in line with the CMIZ020 extended model with a long term annual rate of improvernent of 1 5%,
# smoathing parameter of 7, an initial addition to morality improverments of 0.5% pa and an
allowance for 2020 data of 0% (i.e. w2020 = (%),

Following the 21 December 2018 valuation, a deficht recovery plan was put in place until 31 December 2022
and the deficit recovery contributions (as a percentage of pensionable stipends) were &4 st out in the table
Below, An interim reduction to deficit contributions 1o 3.7% of pensionable stipends was made with effect
from 1 April 2022. Following finalisation of the 31 Decemnber 2021 valuation, deficlt contributions ceased
with effect from 1 January 2023, sknce the Scheme was in surplus.

As al 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021 the deficit recovery contributions under the recovery plan
in force were as set out in the table below. For senior office holders, pensionable stipends are adjusted in
the caleulations by @ multiple, as set out in the Scheme's rukes,

% of pensionable stipends January 2018 to lanuary 2021 to
December 2020 December 2022
Deficit repair contributions 11.9% 7.1%

Seclion 28.114A of FRS 102 requires agreed deficit recovery payments 1o be recognised as a liability. However,
&s there are no agreed deficit recovery payments from 1 January 2023 onwards, the balance sheet liability as
at 31 Decernber 2022 is nil. The movement In the balance sheet ability over 2021 and over 2022 ks 18t out

in the 1able below.

2022 2021
Balance cheet lability af 1 Lanuary SE0,000 1,108,000
Deficit contribution padd 1335.000) [562,000]
Interest cost {recognised in SeFa) - 2,000
Remaining change to the balance sheet liability® [fecognsed in Sofa) (225,000) 12,600
Bslanse chnnd lia h:III"l- nt T Mmsseiaee P o

* Comprises change in sgreed defich recovery plen and change in discount rate and assumplion Betwesn vear-gnds,

55




LEEDE DICCESAN BOARD OF FINAMCE

HOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the year ended 31 Decembar 2022

e

27. PENSIONS [continued)

This liabdlity represents the present walue of the delicit contributions agreed as at the accounting date and
has been valued using the following assumptions, Mo assumptions are nesded for December 2022 as there
are it agreed defscit recovery payments going forward, Mo price inflation assumption was needed for
December 2021 since pensionable stipends for the remainder of the recovery plan were already known.

Dec 2022 Dec 2021 Dec 2020

Discount rate nfa 0.0% pa 0.1% pa

Price inflation nfa nfa 3.1%pa

Increase to total pensionable payrodl nfa -1.5% pa L6% pa

The legal structure of the scheme i such that il Responsible Body fails, the Diocese of Leeds could become
responsible for payving a share of that Responsible Body's pension liabilities.

Churnch Workers Pengion Fund — Defined Benefits Scheme

Until 31 December 2018 the Leeds DBF participated in the Defined Benefits Scheme section of OWPF for lay
staff of the former three disceses. The Scheme & administered by the Church of England Penslons Boeard,
which holds the assets of the schemes separately from those of the Empleyer and the other participating
Employers.

Thee Church Waorkers Pension Fund has a section known as the Defined Benefits Scheme, a deferred annuity
sectipn known as Pension Builder Classic and a cash balance section known ag Pension Builder 2014.

Defined Benefits Scherme

The Defined Benefits Schame [“DBS") secthan of the Church Workers Pension Fund provides benefits for lay
staff based on final penzionable salaries,

For funding purpases, the DBS Is divided into sub-pools in respect of each participating employer a3 well ag
a further sub-poal, known &5 the Life Risk Pool. The Life Risk Pool exists to share certaln risks between
employers, including those relating to mortality and post-retirement imeestment returmns,

The divisson of the 085 into sub-pools Is noticnal and s for the purpose of caloulating ongoing contributions.
They do not alter the fact that the assets of the DBS are held as a singhe trust fund o of which all the benefits
are to be provided. From time to time, a notional premium is transferred from employers’ sub-pools to the
Life Risk Pool and all pensipns and death benefits are pabd from the Life Risk Pool,

The schieme is considered is & multi-employer scheme a3 described in Section 28 of FRS 102, It i not possible
to attribute the scheme's assets and labilities vo speclfic employers, since each employer, through the Life
Risk Pood, is exposed to actuarial risks associated with the current and former employees of other entities
participating in the DBS. This meand that contributiens are sccounted for as if the Scheme were a defined
contribution scheme. The pensions costs changed to the SoFA [n the year are contributions payable towarnds
banefits and expensas accrued in that year, plus any impact of deficit contributions ase shown i Note 13
[s2e also below).

If, Tollowing an actuarial valuation of the Ufe Risk Pool, there s a surpdus or deficit in the pool, further
transfers may b made from the Life Risk Pool to the employers’ sub-poels, or wice wersa. The amounts to be
transferced [and thelr afocation between the sub-pools) will be settled by the Church of England Pensions
Board on the sdvice of the Actuary,
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27. PENSIONS (continued)

A valuation of DBES is carried out once every three vears, The most recently finalised was carried out as st 31
December 2012, In this valuation, the Life Risk Section was shown ta be in deficit by £7.7m and £7.7m was
notionally transferred from the employers’ sub-pools to the Life Risk Section. This increased the Emplayer
contributions that would otherwise be payable. The owerall deficit in DES was £11.3m.

The next actuarial valuation is currently taking place as at 31 December 2022,

Following the 2019 valuation, the Leeds DBF entered Into an agreement with the Church Workers Pension Fund
for the DBS Schemes as follows:

Leeds DEF [Bradiord) DBS
Following the valuation, the Diccese of Leeds has entered into an agreement with the Church Werkers Pengicn

Fund to pay expenses of £5,600 pa.

Leeds DEF (Ripon & Leeds) DBS

Following the valuation, the Discese of Leeds has entéred into an agreement with the Church Workers Pension
Fund to pay expenses of £3,500 pa. In addition, deficit payments of £167,766 per year were agreed Tor 1.25
years from 1 April 2021 in respect of the shortfall in the Diocese of Leeds sub-poal, which has now been deared,

Leeds DBEF (Ripon & Leeds Edwcation Team) DBS
Following the valuation, the Diocese of Leeds has entered into an agreement with the Church Workers Pension

Fund to pay expenses of £2,000 pa.

Lesds DBF (Wakefield) DBS

Followeng the valuation, the Diocese of Loed: has entered into an agreement with the Church Workers Pension
Fund to pay expenses of £12.5%00 pa. In addition, deficit payments of £74,091 per year were agreed for 1.92
years from 1 April 2021 In respect of the shortfall in the Diccese of Leeds sub-pool. Although £12,000 remained
eutstanding at 31 December 2022 the scheme valuation had improved such that deficit payments ceased at
that point. The remakning liability has therefore been written off in these accounts.

These obligations have been rocognised as a labillity within the financial staterments.

Section 2E.11A of FRS 102 requires agreed deficit recovery payments to be recognised a3 a lability, The
mgwemEnt i the provision is set out below;

2022 2021
Balance sheet liabilty at 1 January 165,000 B9 1,000
Dedicit contribution paid {158,000) (258,000}
Interest cost (recognised in SoFA) 1,000 1,000
Remaining change to balance sheet Bability*{recognised in SoFA) (12,000 (265,000
Balance sheel Bability at 31 December - 159,000

*® Comprites change in sgreed deficit recovery plan and change in discownt rate between year-ends.
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

27. PENSIONS [continued)

This liabdlity represents the present value of the deficii contributions agreed as at the acopuniing date and
has been valued vsing the following assumptions, set by reference to the duration of the deficit recovery

paymienls:

Discount rate December 2022 December 2021 Decernber 2020
Leeds DBF (Bradford) DBS nfa 0.00% 0.30%
Leeds DEF [Bradiord & Ripon

Education Team) DBS rfa 0.00% 0.30%
Leads DRF (Wakefield) DES nfa 1.30% 0.30%
Lewds DBF {Ripon & Leeds) DBS nfa 0.00% 0.30%
Pension Builder Scheme

Thee Pension Bullder Scheme of the Chunch Workers Pension Fund is made up of two sections, Pension Bullder
Classic and Penshon Bullder 2014, both of which are classed as defined benefit schemes.

Pension Builder Classic provides a pension for members for payment from retirement, acoumulated from
contributions pald and coowverted into 2 deferred annuity during employment based on terms set and
reviewed by the Church of England Pensions Board from time to time. Bonuses may also be declared,
depending upon the investment reterns and other Bactors.

Pension Buibder 2014 s a cash balance scheme that provides a lump sum that members use to provide
benefits at retirement. Pension contribations are recorded in an account for each member. This account may
have bonuses added by the Board before retirerment. The bonuses depend on investrment experiance snd
ather factors. Thend is no requirement for the Board to grant any bonuges, The account, plus any bonuses
declared, Is payable from members’ Mormal Penslon Age.

There (s no sub-division of assets between employers in each section af the Pengion Builder Scheme,

The scheme is considered to be a multi-employer scheme as described in Secticn 28 of FRS 102, This is
because it ks not possible to attribute the Pension Bullder Scheme’s assets and labdities to specific employers
and that contributions are accounted for as i the Scheme were a defined contribution scheme, The pensions
costs charged to the SofA in the year are contributions payable [see Note 13 and above].

Avaluation of the scheme is carrid out onee every three years. The most recent valuation was carried oul
a5 at 31 December 2019, The next waluation s due as a1 31 December 2022,

For the Pension Bullder Classic section, the valuation revealed a deficlt of £4.8m on the ongoing assumptions
used, Al the most recent annual review, the Board chose Lo grant a discretbonary bonus of 10.1% following
improvements in the funding position over 2022, There is no requirement for deficlt payments at the current
time,

For the Pension Builder 2014 section, the valuation revealed a surplus of £5.5m on the ongoing assumptions
used. There is no reguirement for deficit payments at the current time,

The legal structure of the scheme is sweh that il another employer fails, the Leeds DEF could become kable
for paying a share of that employer’s pension liabilities.,

Fraom 1 lanuary K9 until 30 Novemnber 2022 all lay staff emploved by the LDBF are enrolled In the Pension
Builder Classic scheme. On 1 December 2022 !hl: a new Dalmed Euntrlbuﬂun pension schieme (the Fexible

Ak wr il [ e B P
oS R R e oy Sl S0 o il ...I. D m bt B ACRE Ta T KR - Sl R hllrut.ﬂlé.uu.l.lal.llfrfq.*

were abIE i tran5fer across. Contribution rales are the same as for the Pension Bullder Classic Scheme =
8.0% of pensionable salary unmatched, plus up to a further 5.0% matched to employvee contributions

SR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2027

28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Board enlers into ransactions, on & regular basis, with other awonomous organisations within the
Church of England - e.g. Parishes, the Cathedrals, the Central Board of Finance, the Arehbishops Council off
the Church of England and the Church Commissioners. From time ta time Directors and key managers of the
Board may serve on committees of other bodigs, or the General Synod. 1t is not considered sppropriste Lo
report the detail of such transactions since no person or group of people so serving have any significant
influences over any material transactions.

There are no unusual transactions with sueh bodies reflected in these financlal statements.
3. FUMNDS HELD AS CUSTODAN TRUSTEE

The LDBF acts a5 Diocesan Authority of custodian tristes for many trust funds by virtee of the Parochial
Church Coundlls [Powers) Measure 1956 and the Incumbents and Churchwardens [Trusts) Measure 19564
where the managing trustees are parochial chureh councils and others. Assets held in this way are not
aggregated in these financial statements as the LDBF does not contfel them. The financial assels held in this
Way mary be summarized as follows:

2022 2021

EDOD £000

CBF Church of England Investment Fund income shares 12,511 12,879
C8F Church of England Investment Fund accumulation shares 36 an
CBF Church of England UK Equity shares El 21
CEF Church of Global Equity shares SE1 £81
CBF Church of England Fixed Interast Securities Fund shares 362 369
CBF Church of England Progerty Fund shares 425 425
Other common Investment fund haldings 670 B34
Direct holdings in UK eguities 360 354
CBF Church of England Depaosit Fund 1,781 1,770
Total assets held as custodian trustes 16,807 17,150
—— —
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